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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG

LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

ERBMEXZHMARLT ([BXF]) GEMNES

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks
of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally
small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board and no assurance is given that there will be a
liguid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any
part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Shanxi Changcheng
Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Company. The directors
of the Company, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there
are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or this report misleading.
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| am honored to serve as the Chairman of the board of
directors (the “Board”) of the Company.

The Board and the management team will strive to
comprehensively improve the Group’s operations, production,
research & development and market development capabilities
in order to enhance corporate value and financial performance.
Although the COVID-19 pandemic (the “pandemic”) in 2021
still has a continuous impact on the Company’s operations, the
board of directors and management team have been actively
working to minimize the impact to ensure that the Company
could respond in a timely manner and achieve significant
development.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all employees for their contributions and to
shareholders and investors for their support.

Wu Bo
Chairman

Taiyuan City, Shanxi Province, the PRC
10 June 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

Business Review
Business of the Group

Since the listing of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) on GEM of the Stock Exchange in
2004, the Group has been engaging in the design, research,
development, manufacture and sale of image transmission
fiber optic products as its principal business. Image
transmission fiber optics products manufactured by the Group
are image transmission devices containing a rigidly bundle of
optical fibers arranged in an ordered fashion so that images
can be transmitted from one end of the optical fiber bundle
and displayed on the other end of the bundle. A typical image
transmission fiber optic product of the Group would consist of
over 10 million optical fibers.

At present, the Group produces five main products, including
fiber optic inverters, fiber optic straight plates, fiber optic face
plates, fiber optic tapers and microchannel plates. Although
fiber-optic imaging devices (fiber optic inverters, fiber optic
face plates, fiber optic tapers and microchannel plates)
have been increasingly used in medical imaging equipment,
digital photography, physics, biochemistry and other civilian
applications in recent years, they are currently mainly used in
military low-light night vision devices and military low-light
night vision video systems. Its customers are mainly located at
China, Russia and the other Asian countries.

Change in Management Team and Board Composition

The Group underwent the change in management team
members since the first quarter of 2021. As disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 21 June 2021, Ms. Fong
Yip Ha Angela was appointed as the company secretary and
authorised representative.

Upon the appointment of the new management team, we
continue to promote the improvement and upgrade of image
transmission fiber optic production process and technology,
actively explore civilian customers and expand market
share and sales channels. Due to the outbreak of the novel
coronavirus pandemic since 2020, which has had a great
impact on the Company’s production, sales and operations, the
new management team is committed to reducing the impact
of the pandemic and getting the Company back on track as
soon as possible.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Image Transmission Fiber Optic Production
Improvement Measures and Technology Upgrade

Since the fourth quarter of 2018, the Group have implemented
various measures (the “Operational Measures”) to improve
the business capabilities of the Group.

In view of the image transmission fiber optic production
technology upgrade, the Group received a subsidy from the
industrial transformation and upgrading fund in the amount
of RMB20,000,000 (the “ITU Fund”) from the government
of Taiyuan City, Shanxi Province on 26 December 2018,
which specifically supports the industrial transformation and
upgrading and technological transformation project of the
Group. The Group will utilise the ITU Fund to implement image
transmission fiber optic production technology upgrade.

Financial Position and Going Concern Issue

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had net current liabilities
and net liabilities of approximately RMB216,141,000 and
RMB114,420,000 respectively. These conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant
doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and therefore the Group may be unable to realise its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

To improve the financial position of the Group, the directors of
the Company have implemented, including but not limited to,
the following measures (the “Financial Measures”):

(i) at capital level:

Introducing new strategic investors into the private
placement of new shares/bonds, and negotiating
and implementing capital operation proposals with
shareholders and potential investment institutions;
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

(i) at the operational level:

Revitalizing the long-term assets and planning to
lease out the properties temporarily not used in the
Company’s business operations, so as to increase
the property income; developing new products for
extending the downstream of the industrial chain and
strengthening the existing sales forces and introducing
more capable strategic sales agencies;, and taking the
advantage of the technological advantages accumulated
by the Company in the field of military products to
expand into the field of civilian products and increase
new customers and income sources; and

(i) In respect of liabilities:

negotiating and implementing loan interest reduction/
exemption schemes with shareholders and borrowers
and seeking financial support from substantial
shareholders and borrowers

Details of the implemented Financial Measures are as follows:

During the first quarter of 2020, the Company entered
into a revised loan agreement with Taiyuan Changcheng
Optics Electronics Industrial Company Limited (“Taiyuan
Changcheng”), a substantial shareholder of the Company,
pursuant to which Taiyuan Changcheng has agreed to revise
the term of existing loan to the Company in the principal
amount of RMB11,200,000 to three years from 1 January 2019
to 1 January 2022 and delay the payment of interest for the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020 to 2021. During
the first quarter of 2019, the Company entered into revised
loan agreements with a former related company and the other
borrower, pursuant to which a former related company and
the other borrower have agreed to revise the term of existing
loans to the Company to three years from 1 January 2019 to 1
January 2022 and delay the payment of interest for the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2020 to 2021. The modification
to the terms of the above loans is collectively referred to as
(the “Loan Modification”).

During the second quarter of 2019, the Company entered into
an agreement (i) with Taiyuan Changcheng pursuant to which
Taiyuan Changcheng has agreed to waive the interest for the
year of 2019 for the loan in the amount of RMB11,200,000
and (ii) the other borrower pursuant to which the other
borrower has agreed to waive the interest for the year of 2019
for the loan in the amount of RMB5,824,000.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2021

(i) K2Em:

BERBEE BEBARLE LY
B INETT A iEbﬂ#@ﬁé
WA B FTEm - MEZEE Nl
- R REREHENE %U\
BPHEEITNEBEEHEERER
MAR Tﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁgm&mg
2o mRAERERETHE BN
FHEPMBARER: &

iy BEH@:

HNGE MEE AERME e
BB TEERSRKTIERRLEER
AR IS+ o

EERNMBREENFBNOT

RZFZEFE-—FE ARaHEKET
ERAEFERETAR([KERHE])
(RDFE— %ka%)Jiﬁwﬁﬁﬁ
W B KARRBERESALARIRE
ME R AL EAR11,200,0007T 2 HifR
BiAR=F a=ZFT—NF—HA—AH=

T —F—A—HB TEEHZE —_T— h
FMZZE-ZTF+_A=1+—HLEFEHN

MNBYNEZE_—F-RZE—NEFHE
—FE ARRE-—XRIBAELRAR—HA
HMEE AT LIS ER G Rt —
RABEAR R —ZEMEEAERER
$ Tﬁﬁmé R BRIER R=F 8

—hW&E—A—B&=-_F-_—_F—H—
B TEERE T NFN_E_ZTF

T_A=+T—BLEFENMNEE_T_—
FXf R EEFTEXNERRER ([E
KRBT ) -

“T-NFEFE ARBEOKRE
WETS Wik - Bt ARRWERE# =

T-NFEEBARK11,200,000tHE
RAER()—BEMEE AT L B

—ZEMEBAERERE-Z— A
FEHRARYS,824,000THE KA A -



Management Discussion and Analysis

On 11 July 2019, Taiyuan Changcheng and Beijing Gensir
Venture Capital Management Limited (”Beijing Gensir”, which
together with Taiyuan Changcheng, the “Lenders”), both being
the substantial shareholders of the Company, have entered into
a loan agreement with the Company, pursuant to which the
Lenders agreed to grant a term loan in the principal amount of
RMB60,000,000 (“Shareholders’ Loan A") to the Company for
the purposes of funding of the technological transformation and
upgrade plan and replenishing the Company’s general working
capital. On 29 July 2019, the Lenders had further entered into a
supplemental loan agreement with the Company in relation to
the Shareholders’ Loan A.

On 30 July 2019, the Lenders have entered into another
loan agreement with the Company, pursuant to which the
Lenders agreed to grant a term loan in the principal amount
of RMB20,000,000 (“Shareholders’ Loan B"”) to the
Company for the purposes of funding of the technological
transformation and upgrade plan and replenishing the
Company’s general working capital.

The key terms of the Shareholders’ Loan A and the
Shareholders’ Loan B are summarized and disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 31 July 2019. According
to the update from the Lenders, the drawdown date of
the Shareholders’ Loan A and Shareholders’ Loan B will be
postponed to a time to be fixed with the Company.

In December 2020, the Group renewed the outstanding bank
borrowing in the amount of RMB10,650,000.

Financial Review

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the sales of the Group
was approximately RMB18,417,000 (2020: RMB8,061,000),
representing an increase of approximately 128.5% as
compared to that of the corresponding financial period. Due
to the recovering of industrial and commercial activities as a
result of the continuous impact of Covid-19 in 2021, for the
year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s production and
sales volume increased significantly, resulting in a substantial
increase in sales.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the sales cost of
the Group was approximately RMB15,100,000 (2020:
RMB8,723,000), representing an increase of approximately
73.1% as compared to that of the last financial year. The
increase was mainly due to the increase in sales revenue and
corresponding increase in cost of sales.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

For the year ended 31 December 2021, The gross profit
margin of the Group was 18.01% (2020: -8.21%). Due to the
impact of COVID-19 and epidemic control measures in 2020,
the three customers involved in the audit report were greatly
affected. The products they purchased were overstocked and
they were unable to pay for the goods. After communicating
with the customers, they were allowed to return the purchased
products for sales return processing. Hence, the gross profit
margin in 2020 was-8.21%. The gross profit margin in 2021
was moderate as the COVID-19 epidemic in 2021 were
gradually stabilized and the adverse effects were partially
eliminated.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded
other income, gains and losses amounting to approximately
RMB2,854,000 (2020: RMB4,022,000), representing a
decrease of approximately RMB1,168,000 as compared to that
of the corresponding financial period. The decrease was mainly
due to the decrease in the proportion of government subsidy
income according to the progress. The details of other income,
gains and losses are set out in note (9) to the consolidated
financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded
administrative and other operating expenses of approximately
RMB17,430,000 (2020: RMB19,464,000), representing a
decrease of approximately RMB2,034,000 as compared to
that of the corresponding financial period. The decrease in the
administrative and other operating expenses was mainly due
to the Group’s cost reduction and efficiency enhancement and
streamlining of management staff.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded
finance costs of approximately RMB8,406,000 (2020:
RMB9,096,000), representing a decrease of approximately
RMB690,000 as compared to that of the corresponding
financial period. The details of finance costs are set out in note
(10) to the consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the loss after tax
of the Group was approximately RMB40,457,000 (2020:
RMB27,917,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Connected Transactions and Financial Assistance from
Taiyuan Changcheng, Beijing Gensir and Connected
Persons

The Group obtained financial assistance from Taiyuan
Changcheng, a substantial shareholder of the Company. As at
31 December 2021, the amount due to Taiyuan Changcheng
was approximately RMB21,964,000. The financial assistance
of approximately RMB1,350,000 provided by Taiyuan
Changcheng to the Company are secured by certain plant and
machinery and motor vehicles of the Company

The Group obtained financial assistance from Beijing Gensir, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. As at 31 December
2021, the amount due to Beijing Gensir was approximately
RMB702,000

The Group obtained financial assistance from two
connected persons (the “Connected Persons”). As at 31
December 2021, the amount due to Connected Persons was
approximately RMB683,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, total interest charged
by Taiyuan Changcheng, Beijing Gensir and Connected Persons
was approximately RMB817,000, RMB18,000 and RMB25,000
respectively. The directors of the Company consider that the
interest charged by Taiyuan Changcheng, Beijing Gensir and
Connected Persons are based on normal commercial terms
or better. The financial assistances and interest expenses are
exempted from connected transaction requirements.

Bank and Other Borrowings

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had an outstanding
bank borrowing in the amount of RMB10,650,000 (2020:
RMB10,900,000) which had been renewed in December 2019.
The term of the bank borrowing is three years commencing on
30 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had outstanding other
borrowings in the amount of approximately RMB83,058,000
(2020: RMB79,187,000), including non-current portion
of approximately RMBNil (2020: RMB8,767,000) and
current portion of approximately RMB93,708,000 (2020:
RMB81,320,000)
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As at 31 December 2021, a shareholder provided guarantee
to the other borrowers in relating to the other borrowings
to the Group in the amount of RMB2,482,000 (2020:
RMB2,482,000).

Financial Assistance to Related Parties

As at 31 December 2020, the amount due from a shareholder
— Taiyuan Tanghai Automatic Control Company Limited was
approximately RMB593,000. As at 31 December 2020, the
amount of approximately RMB593,000 was fully impaired.

As at 31 December 2020, the amount due from a former
related company — Shanxi Jindi Yucheng Medical Equipments
Company Limited (formerly known as Taiyuan Huamei Medical
Equipments Company Limited) was approximately RMB47,000.
As at 31 December 2020, the amount of approximately
RMB47,000 was fully impaired.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2021, the total assets of the Group
decreased by approximately RMB25,247,000 to approximately
RMB148,505,000 as compared to approximately
RMB173,752,000 as at the end of the previous financial
period, representing a decrease of approximately 14.53%.

As at 31 December 2021, the total liabilities of the
Group increased by approximately RMB15,206,000 to
approximately RMB262,925,000 as compared to approximately
RMB247,719,000 as at the end of the previous financial
period, representing an increase of approximately 6.14%.

As at 31 December 2021, the total equity of the Group
decreased by approximately RMB40,453,000 to approximately
negative RMB114,420,000 as compared to approximately
negative RMB73,967,000 as at the end of the previous
financial period.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2021, the gearing ratio (defined as net
debt divided by total share capital plus net debt) of the Group
was approximately 195% (2020: 152%).

Significant Investment Held

As at 31 December 2021, the Group held interests in
associates with the carrying value of approximately RMB
Nil(2020: RMB Nil ).

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries

The Group had no acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2021, certain plant and machinery and
buildings at carrying amount of approximately RMB Nil and
RMB44,317,000 (2020: RMB17,000 and RMB45,726,000)
respectively were pledged to secure a bank borrowing to the
Group.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s right-of-use assets
located at No. 7 Dianzi Street, Demonstration Zone, Shanxi,
the PRC was pledged to secure a bank borrowing to the
Group.

As at 31 December 2021, certain plant and machinery
and motor vehicles at carrying amount of approximately
RMB365,000 and RMB Nil (2020: RMB484,000 and RMB Nil)
respectively were pledged to secure the amount due to a
shareholder.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no contingent
liabilities.

Exposure of Fluctuation in Exchange Rates

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as
most of its business transactions, assets, and liabilities are
principally denominated in the functional currency of the
Group.

Employee Information

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had approximately 380
full-time employees. The Group remunerates its employees
based on their experience, performance and value, which they
contribute to the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

Additional Information Relating to the Disclaimer of
Opinion

The auditors of the Company issued disclaimer of opinion in
the independent auditors’ report relating to the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021. In view of removing the disclaimer
of opinion, the Board will formulate and consider the following
action plan:

(i) The management will continue to strengthen and
implement financial measures and operational measures
to ensure that the Group’s operation be able to recover
rapidly;

(ii) The management begins to prepare for fundraising
plans, such as equity financing and debt restructuring;
and

(i)  The management discusses with shareholders to
finalize the Shareholder Loan A in the amount of
RMB60,000,000 and the Shareholder Loan B in the
amount of RMB20,000,000 as soon as practicable.

Events After the Reporting Period
Nil

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2021
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Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

EE EERE

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Zhi ("Mr. Zhao"), aged 59, graduated from the
Macau University of Science and Technology and holds a
master’'s degree in business administration. Mr. Zhao was
appointed as the chairman of the board of directors, an
executive director, the chairman and a member of the
nomination committee, the compliance officer and the
authorized representative of the Company on 26 March 2019
and ceased to be the chairman of the board of directors, the
chairman and a member of the nomination committee, the
compliance officer and the authorized representative of the
Company on 15 January 2020.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Zhao was the director,
general manager, deputy general manager and party
committee member of Taiyuan Dongshan Coal Mine Co.,
Limited and the party secretary, chairman and director of
Taiyuan Dongshan Coal and Electricity Group Co., Limited.
Mr. Zhao was awarded the Model Worker of Taiyuan City in
1999 and 2005, the Outstanding Entrepreneur of Taiyuan
City in 2007, the Outstanding Entrepreneur and Business
Entrepreneur of Shanxi Province in 2008, the Supermodel
Worker and Meritorious Entrepreneur of Taiyuan City in 2010,
and the Wu Yi Labor Medal of Shanxi Province in 2011. Mr.
Zhao was elected as the representative of the 13th People’s
Congress of Taiyuan City and the representative of the 11th
Congress of Taiyuan City of the Communist Party of China.

Mr. Song Zhenglai (“Mr. ZL Song”), aged 45, holds a
college degree in accounting from the School of Economics
and Management of Changchun University. Mr. ZL Song was
appointed as an executive director and the vice-chairman of
the board of directors of the Company on 30 November 2017.
Mr. ZL Song was appointed as the chairman and a member
of the nomination committee, the compliance officer and
the authorized representative of the Company on 15 January
2020 and ceased to be the chairman and a member of the
nomination committee on 16 February 2020 and resigned as
the financial controller of the Company on 11 January 2020.
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Mr. ZL Song served as the chief financial officer of Changchun
Changling Engine Company Limited from March 2002 to
September 2004, the finance director of Shenzhen Zhonghang
Night Vision Technology Limited from May 2006 to March
2009 and the general manager of Changchun Faw Automotive
Chassis Limited Company from May 2010 to January 2014.

Mr. Jiao Baoguo (“Mr. Jiao"), aged 54, graduated from the
Dalian University of Technology and holds a master’s degree in
engineering. Mr. Jiao was appointed as an executive director of
the Company on 26 March 2019. Mr. Jiao acted as the general
manager of the Company effective from 4 February 2019
and resigned as the general manager of the Company on 11
January 2020.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Jiao was the deputy general
manager of Taiyuan Dongshan Coal Mine and Electricity Group
Co., Limited and the chairman and general manager of Shanxi
Zhihengcheng Technology Co., Limited. Mr. Jiao is currently the
party secretary and chairman of Taiyuan Changcheng Optics
Electronics Industrial Company Limited. Mr. Jiao has won the
second prize of the Shanxi Provincial Science and Technology
Award and the Shanxi Provincial Science and Technology
“Golden Bull Award”. Mr. Jiao has led the team to obtain four
utility model patents, two software copyrights, one appearance
patent and one trademark right, and independently developed
a miniature ECG recorder.

Ms. Wang Lingling (“Ms. Wang"”), aged 56, holds a
bachelor’s degree in optoelectronic from the Department of
Physics of Shanxi University and a doctoral degree in material
physics and chemistry from the Changchun University of
Science and Technology. Ms. Wang was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 30 November 2017. Ms.
Wang is currently the vice general manager of technical quality
and the chief engineer of the Company.

Ms. Wang served as the craftsman in the optical fiber plant
of Taiyuan Changcheng Optoelectronics Microlight Equipment
Factory from July 1988 to December 1995, the chief of section
of Taiyuan Changcheng Optoelectronics Microlight Equipment
Factory from January 1996 to December 1998, the vice senior
of workshop of the Company from January 1999 to December
2007, the manager of quality department of the Company
from January 2008 to May 2009 and the vice general manager
of technical quality of the Company from June 2009 to the
present.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2021
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Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Yuan Guoliang (“Mr. GL Yuan”), aged 60, graduated
from the Changchun University of Science and Technology.
Mr. GL Yuan was appointed as a non-executive director of
the Company on 27 May 2011. Mr. GL Yuan was appointed
as a member of the audit committee and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company on 30 November
2017. Mr. GL Yuan served as the deputy director of the
Strategic Policy Committee of the Company from May 2011 to
November 2017.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. GL Yuan worked in Shanxi
Jinxi Machines Factory from August 1985 to April 1990 and
worked with Taiyuan City Economic Committee from May
1990 to July 2006.

Based on the interests filing disclosure, as at the latest
practicable date, Mr. GL Yuan holds 3,645,000 H shares and
his spouse holds 250,000 H shares of the Company.

Mr. Wu Bo (“"Mr. Wu"), aged 55, holds economic
management major of Heilongjiang Institute of Commerce. Mr.
Wu was appointed as a non-executive director of the Company
on 30 November 2017 and the chairman of the board of
directors, the chairman and a member of the nomination
committee of the Company on 16 February 2020.

From February 2008 to the present, Mr. Wu has been the
executive director and general manager of Shenzhen Ronger
Optics & Electronic Technology Development Company
Limited, the supervisor of Kunming Ronger Optic & Electronic
Technology Development Company Limited and the chairman
of the board of directors of Yunnan Zhongkewei Optical
Instruments Company Limited. Mr. Wu served as the general
manager of Russia Zhenhui Company from April 1997 to
August 2007.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Yongfeng (“Mr. Xu”) was appointed as an
independent non-executive director, the chairman and
a member of the audit committee, a member of the
remuneration committee and a member of the nomination
committee of the Company on 26 March 2019.

Mr. Xu, aged 49, graduated from Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law with a bachelor’s degree in accounting.
Mr. Xu obtained the Chinese Certified Public Accountant’s
Licensing Certificate, the Chinese Certified Tax Agent's
Licensing Certificate and the Chinese Legal Licensing
Certificate. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Xu worked
in the accounting department of China Construction Bank,
served as the finance manager in Shenzhen Xinnan Industrial
Development Co., Limited, the finance manager in Shenzhen
Rihao Shopping Plaza Co., Limited and the senior audit
manager in Zhonglian Certified Public Accountants Co.,
Limited.

Mr. Wang Weizhong (“Mr. Wang"”) was appointed as an
independent non-executive director and a member of the
nomination committee of the Company on 26 March 2019.

Mr. Wang, aged 39, graduated from the Vocational and
Technical College of Shanxi University with a major in
computer networking and a college degree. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Wang worked in the marketing department of
Taiyuan Aode Software Engineering Co., Limited, served as the
manager in Jinzhong Sina Information Technology Co., Limited
and the manager in Zhangzhou Hexintong Technology Co.,
Limited.

Mr. Rong Fei (“Mr. Rong"”) was appointed as an independent
non-executive director, a member of the audit committee and
the chairman and a member of the remuneration committee of
the Company on 26 March 2019.

Mr. Rong, aged 34, graduated from Shanxi University
of Finance and Economics with a bachelor’s degree in
international economics and trade. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Rong worked in the administrative affairs
department of Huadian Shanxi Energy Co., Limited and served
as the officer of the general management department of
Shanxi Hetai Real Estate Development Co., Limited.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2021
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Supervisors

Ms. Han Xiaoou (“Ms. Han"), aged 44, graduated from
Shanxi Normal University with a major in Chinese language
and holds a postgraduate degree of political science. Ms. Han
was appointed as a supervisor of the Company since 27 May
2011. Ms. Han is currently the chairman of the labor union
and the secretary of the Communist Youth League Committee
of Taiyuan Changcheng Optics Electronics Industrial Company
Limited. Ms. Han has been working in the Company since
graduating from Shanxi Normal University in 1999 and is
currently the chairman of the supervisor committee and the
senior of the executive office of the Company.

Mr. Dong Yonghong (“Mr. Dong”), aged 53, graduated
from Shanxi University majoring in economic management.
Mr. Dong was appointed as a supervisor of the Company on
30 November 2017. Mr. Dong has been the project manager
of the research and development centre of the Company since
February 2006.

Mr. Song Zhenbao (“Mr. ZB Song”), aged 51, holds
a master's degree from lJilin University. Mr. ZB Song was
appointed as a supervisor of the Company on 30 November
2017. Mr. ZB Song is currently a business management
consultant of Changchun Huagingyuan Technology Company
Limited. Mr. ZB Song was the vice president of Changchun
Yongxin Pharmaceutical from 2006 to 2008 and the chief
consultant of UFIDA Software Company Limited, Jilin Branch
from 2009 to 2011.
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Senior Management

Mr. Fan Jiming (“"Mr. Fan"”), aged 60, graduated from Shanxi
Provincial Electronics School. Mr. Fan currently serves as the
director of infrastructure and safety of the Company. Mr. Fan
served as the production manager, the commander of technical
reform department, the manager of purchasing & supply and
the deputy general manager of the Company. Mr. Fan has
been the deputy general manager of Taiyuan Changcheng
Optics Electronics Industrial Company Limited since 1999.

Mr. Qian Yun (“Mr. Qian”), aged 58, graduated from the
Mechanical Department of Taiyuan Polytechnic University. Mr.
Qian is a senior engineer. Mr. Qian currently serves as the
director of enterprise planning of the Company. Prior to joining
the Company in 2005, Mr. Qian served as the deputy general
manager of the Taiyuan Sanjin Aluminum Company Limited.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2021
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The board of directors of the Company submit the annual
report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021.

Principal Activities

The Company continued to be principally engaged in design,
research, development, manufacture, and sale of image
transmission fibre optic products. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in the note (18) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Segment Information

Details of the Group’s segmental information for the year
ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the note (8) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 are set out in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements. The board of directors of the Company does not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the audited results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the past five financial years is set out
in the section headed “Five-year Financial Summary” of this
annual report.

Business Review and Financial Review

Details of business review and financial review of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements and note (31)
to the consolidated financial statements. As at 31 December
2021, the Company had reserves in the amount to RMB
Nil (2020: RMB Nil) available for dividend distribution to
shareholders.

Report of the Directors

EEEHE

ARBEFERXAEEBE_T_—F
T A=+ BLEFEZFRERNEEX
REMB®RK -

EFEXH
ARATEBEAREEERICBERM R
ME FE LEMBEESETEEK K
RAINMBRARZ EBEBENES T
WARMIEEO8) -

TEER
AEEHZ2-_TE-_—F+-_A=+—81t
FEZDEENFBHN G ST EHREM
FE@8) °

RER I
ARBEE—_T-_—F+_-_A=t+—HL
FEZFEFNEM 2R AP HRE AR
AERETEARNBE-T_—F+=
A=t-HALEFEZRERE (ZF=F
FTL) e

IFEMBRHE
AEBEEREAMBFENEEZEEAR
BERBBEZHREBEANANER [ DFUH

mE| e

XX EERMKEE
AEBHEEZE T -_—F+_-_A=1+—81
FEZEBOBELTEOEFBEIHNAF
WIEEEBREDHT] —&Fe

&
KEBMNAAREE T -_—F+_A
Z+—BULFEZREBEESHNBEN 24

B BRI MGEMBHREMTE) R
T —F+-_A=+—H ARQRAA{E
BREDETRREZFHESERARES T
TR T e

WE R AL B RO ERA T
—E-—FEH

21



22

Report of the Directors

EEEHE

Share Capital

There were no movements in the Company’s issued share
capital during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of Shares

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of its listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company and there is no restriction
against such rights under the Companies Law (Revised) in the
PRC.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in the note (16) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Staff Retirement Plans

All members of staff are entitled to participate in the public
welfare fund, which was set up for the purpose of ensuring
that the participating employees will have sufficient means
to support their living after retirement. For the year ended
31 December 2021, the Group reported employer's pension
scheme contributions of approximately RMB5,544,000 (2020:
RMB2,791,000).

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers accounted for
approximately 21% (2020: 51%) and 77% (2020: 92%) of the
Group’s total turnover respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s
largest supplier and the five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 43% (2020: 89%) and 96% (2020: 96%) of the
Group's total purchases respectively.

To the knowledge of the directors of the Company, none of
the directors or supervisors of the Company or their respective
associates or any of the shareholders of the Company who
owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had
any interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Connected Transactions and Financial Assistance from
Taiyuan Changcheng, Beijing Gensir and Connected
Persons

The Group obtained financial assistance from Taiyuan
Changcheng, a substantial shareholder of the Company. As at
31 December 2021, the amount due to Taiyuan Changcheng
was approximately RMB21,964,000. The financial assistance
of approximately RMB1,350,000 provided by Taiyuan
Changcheng to the Company are secured by certain plant and
machinery and motor vehicles of the Company.

The Group obtained financial assistance from Beijing Gensir, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. As at 31 December
2021, the amount due to Beijing Gensir was approximately
RMB702,000.

The Group obtained financial assistance from two
connected persons (the “Connected Persons”). As at 31
December 2021, the amount due to Connected Persons was
approximately RMB683,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, total interest charged
by Taiyuan Changcheng, Beijing Gensir and Connected Persons
was approximately RMB817,000, RMB18,000 and RMB25,000
respectively. The directors of the Company consider that the
interest charged by Taiyuan Changcheng, Beijing Gensir and
Connected Persons are based on normal commercial terms
or better. The financial assistances and interest expenses are
exempted from connected transaction requirements.

Directors

The directors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2021 and up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Zhi

Mr. Song Zhenglai (Vice-Chairman)
Mr. Jiao Baoguo

Ms. Wang Lingling

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yuan Guoliang
Mr. Wu Bo (Chairman)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Xu Yongfeng

Mr. Wang Weizhong

Mr. Rong Fei
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The directors of the Company are appointed for a term of
three years, and are subject to re-election for appointment
by shareholders at the general meeting by the end of each
of three-year period. Given that the nomination process of
candidates for directors of the new session of the Board
has not been completed due to the specific response to the
epidemic, the re-election of the Board of the Company will be
postponed, in order to maintain the continuity of the work of
the Board. The terms of office of the committees under the
fourth session of the Board of the Company will be extended
accordingly. Before the completion of the re-election of the
Board, all members of the fourth session of the Board of
the Company will continue to perform corresponding duties
pursuant to the relevant requirements under relevant laws
and regulations, the GEM Listing Rules and the Articles of
Association of the Company.

Supervisors

The supervisors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2021 and up to the date of this annual report were:

Ms. Han Xiaoou (Chairman)
Mr. Dong Yonghong
Mr. Song Zhenbao

The supervisors of the Company are appointed for a term of
three years, and are subject to re-election for appointment
by shareholders at the general meeting by the end of each
of three-year period. Given that the nomination process
of candidates for supervisors of the new session of the
supervisor committee has not been completed due to the
specific response to the epidemic, the re-election of the
supervisor committee of the Company will be postponed, in
order to maintain the continuity of the work of the supervisor
committee. Before the completion of the re-election of the
supervisor committee, all members of the fourth session of the
supervisor committee of the Company will continue to perform
corresponding duties pursuant to the relevant requirements
under relevant laws and regulations, the GEM Listing Rules and
the Articles of Association of the Company.

Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management

Biographical details of directors, supervisors and senior
management are set out in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of
this annual report.
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Emoluments of The Directors and Supervisors and The EERESEHMERIEESHFAL
Five Highest Paid Individuals

Details of the directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments and the EBEBEREZE7MEeRAEEBREZESHA
five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in the — + 7 S IEHEHNEAMERRMTAO3) -
note (13) to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Service Agreements EEREEREHR
Save as disclosed, none of the directors and supervisors of the & B 4 85 & o $”Aﬁ§$&%§$$ﬁ%ﬁéﬁi
Company has a service contract with the Company which is ARG F ARG FER—FERNE[EEE

not determinable by the Company within one year without CETERE $7I\)ﬁ‘ﬁi5<ﬂ:2ﬂﬁ% #] o
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interests or Short Positions ZEEREENAEALATRG HERAR
in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debenture of the @EHEBZHAKE

Company

As at 31 December 2021, the directors or supervisors of the R —F+_HA=1+—H XKRa&E
Company who had interests or short positions in the shares,  Ea{EERNA QA HEMEEE® (F
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of HZAEAENEEEN ([BEREBE®KL])
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of EXVEL) Z I - B RESFTRIEGR
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded 5 5% % % HA 1?1I¢1§IJ%3521I5<2/\ B A 5% 15
in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the  Frit Z 22 LA B KB EGEM L
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock B &5, 46{|7K}5ﬁ;_tm§§”‘/&§$2;ﬁ§
Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by SINSTIZXEM BRI @ NN 7] M3 P 2 #E
directors of listed issuers as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the mIORBUWT

GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of RELAGRGRIEBRGZHE
the Company

Approximate
Approximate Approximate percentage of
percentage of percentage of holding of the
Number and type holding of the holding of the total share
Nature and capacity in the of domestic domestic shares of  H shares of the capital of the
Name shareholding of the Company shares/H shares the Company* Company* Company*
BEALH BEERT BEALT
RER,/HER nERZ HER 2 B4 N} A
£ BREALAREZMERSH SEREE A B> R A
Yuan Guoliang Personal Interest and Family Interest 3,895,000 (Note 1) - 3.54% 1.26%
RER BABE LK kiEs 3,895,008 (Hiz1)
* Shareholding percentages have been rounded to the nearest * BHERESD AR = HiET 2 WE/ )&
two decimal places. 7 o
Note: Bt -
1. According to the interests filing disclosure, 3,645,000 H shares 1. AR5 7 a5 R IR PT IR 5% + 3,645,000% HAR
are registered in the name of Yuan Guoliang and 250,000 H NRE R &% 550 K&250,0000% HA% LA &
shares are registered in the name of his spouse. BB &ZEEE -

m&ﬁﬁta&ﬁg?ﬁmm 2 5
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
directors or supervisors of the Company nor their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required
standard of dealings by directors of listed issuers as referred to
in Rules 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2021, so far as the directors of the
Company are aware, persons other than the directors or
supervisors of the Company who had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336
of the SFO, were as follows:

B EXIEEIIN R —FF+_A=+—
B ARRESHEEAFRESG 2 HE
A BN AR QN F s EE R AR EE (E&
BESRIEEFIEXVEL) 2B - BRI
DR ESFPEERIEE S LA EEH|5E352
&85 A\ GZ 60 BT il & Re i 2 ({4 2 2k
KB BB EGEM_E T R Bl 555 461§ BT it
FBETAEFETR S M TIREMALN
GRRNAB)RBZ 2 EAEEIORE -

FERR
R-ZE-—F+_A=+—8 BEARQA
BRI RBRES KB ERIZE3361KFT
GEZERMAR BARRIESHES
SN AR DB KEER DTS ES
FARBBALTIT

Approximate
Approximate Approximate percentage of
percentage of percentage of holding of the
Number and type holding of the holding of the total share
Nature and capacity in the of domestic domestic shares of  H shares of the capital of the
Name shareholding of the Company shares/H shares the Company* Company* Company*
BEARA BEARA BEALT
RER,/HE NERZ HER 2 B4 Riagz
e BEALAREZMERSH HEREE R A BAt* R A
Domestic Shares:
RER:
Zhang Shao Hui Interest in a controlled corporation 82,200,000 41.34% - 26.61%
ROB SEHNRER domestic shares
(Note 1)
RER (H5E1)
Beijing Gensir Registered and beneficial owner of 82,200,000 41.34% - 26.61%
Venture Capital the domestic shares and interest  domestic shares
Management Limited in a controlled corporation (Note 2)
GTRRREIEREAEE REARZECIRERAGARRE MER(MF2)
ARAA HARZER
Taiyuan Changcheng Registered and beneficial owner of 80,160,000 40.31% - 25.95%

Optics Electronics
Industrial Company
Limited
ARTRAXEFAR
BERA

the domestic shares

NERZBLEREREAA
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Approximate
Approximate Approximate percentage of
percentage of percentage of holding of the

Number and type holding of the holding of the total share
Nature and capacity in the of domestic domestic shares of  H shares of the capital of the
Name shareholding of the Company shares/H shares the Company* Company* Company*
BEALRA BEALR BEALT
RER,/HR nERZ HER 2 B4 RA&Eg2
#e BEALRREZHERSH HERER R A ARl R A
Beijing Yuankang Registered and beneficial owner of 34,000,000 17.10% - 11.01%
Technology Co., Ltd. the domestic shares domestic shares
TRREREARAR  MERZBZRERERA NER
Jia Yaotian Interest in a controlled corporation 34,000,000 17.10% - 11.01%
EZX g N ol domestic shares
(Note 3)
KA R (M3E3)
Taiyuan Tanghai Registered and beneficial owner of 24,900,000 12.52% - 8.06%
Automatic Control the domestic shares domestic shares
Company Limited NERBEREGHEBA NER
AREBEDEHER
AR
Liu Jiang Interest in a controlled Corporation 24,900,000 12.52% - 8.06%
Eni REHRA R domestic shares
(Note 4)
RERK (MzE4)
Qiu Gui Qin Family interest 24,900,000 12.52% - 8.06%
BEd R RER domestic shares
(Note 4)
WERK (Mzt4)
* Shareholding percentages have been rounded to the nearest * BRESHEAERESZOZMENE
two decimal places. i °
Note: P 3T -
1. According to the interests filing disclosure, part of these domestic 1. RIFERARAEE TDOUHERNER

shares (57,300,000 domestic shares) is registered in the name of
Beijing Gensir, a company whose issued shares were reportedly
registered as to 100% in the name of Zhang Shao Hui. As Zhang
Shao Hui is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one third
or more of the voting power at the general meeting of Beijing
Gensir, for the purpose of the SFO, Zhang Shao Hui is deemed to
be interested in the entire 57,300,000 domestic shares held by
Beijing Gensir.

(57,300,0008& W& J&) LAdL R 2 E &
BRHEB BT ZBRMHM100%E 5 B TR
BRDVIBATHA - AR RDIBEIL NP2
BEAE EHRETERZESTE=92
— A IR A S HA S 1
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According to the interests filing disclosure, the rest of these
domestic shares (24,900,000 domestic shares) are registered
in the name of Taiyuan Tanghai Automatic Control Company
Limited (“Taiyuan Tanghai”), a company whose issued shares
were reportedly registered as to approximately 36.37% in the
name of Beijing Gensir. As Beijing Gensir is entitled to exercise or
control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at
the general meeting of Taiyuan Tanghai, for the purpose of the
SFO, Zhang Shao Hui is deemed to be interested in the entire
24,900,000 domestic shares held by Taiyuan Tanghai.

2. According to the interests filing disclosure, part of these domestic
shares (57,300,000 domestic shares) is registered in the name of
Beijing Gensir, a company whose issued shares were reportedly
registered as to 100% in the name of Zhang Shao Hui. The
rest of these domestic shares (24,900,000 domestic shares) are
registered in the name of Taiyuan Tanghai, a company whose
issued shares were reportedly registered as to approximately
36.37% in the name of Beijing Gensir. As Beijing Gensir is entitled
to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the
voting power at the general meeting of Taiyuan Tanghai, for the
purpose of the SFO, Beijing Gensir is deemed to be interested in
the entire 57,300,000 domestic shares held by Beijing Gensir and
24,900,000 domestic shares held by Taiyuan Tanghai.

3. According to the interests filing disclosure, these 34,000,000
domestic shares are registered in the name of Beijing Yuankang
Technology Co., Ltd.dt RREREBR QA (“Beijing
Yuankang”), a company whose issued shares were reportedly
registered as to approximately 51% in the name of Jia Yaotian.
As Jia Yaotian is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of
one third or more of the voting power at the general meeting
of Beijing Yuankang, for the purpose of the SFO, Jia Yaotian is
deemed to be interested in the entire 34,000,000 domestic shares
held by Beijing Yuankang.

4. According to the interests filing disclosure, these 24,900,000
domestic shares are registered in the name of Taiyuan Tanghai,
a company whose issued shares were reportedly registered as to
approximately 47.29% in the name of Liu Jiang. As Liu Jiang is
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of
the voting power at the general meeting of Taiyuan Tanghai, for
the propose of the SFO, Liu Jiang is deemed to be interested in
the entire 24,900,000 domestic shares held by Taiyuan Tanghai.
Qiu Gui Qin, as the spouse of Liu Jiang, is taken to be interested
in the shares held by Liu Jiang by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, the directors of the Company are not
aware of other person who, as at 31 December 2021, had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO.
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Share Option Scheme
The Group do not have share option scheme.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Rights to Acquire H Shares

During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the
directors or supervisors of the Company was granted options
to subscribe for H shares of the Company. As at 31 December
2021, none of the directors or supervisors of the Company nor
their spouses or children under the age of 18 had any right to
acquire H shares of the Company or had exercised any such
right during the year.

Contracts of Significance

Save as disclosed, no contracts of significance in relation to
the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director or a supervisor
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the year ended 31 December 2021 or at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group was entered into or existed during the year.

Competing Interests

The directors of the Company believe that none of the directors,
supervisors and management shareholders of the Company nor
any of their respective associates had an interest in a business
which competes or may compete with the business of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Mr. Wu Bo, a Director of the Group, is the equity owner of
Shenzhen Ronger Optics & Electronic Technology Development
Company Limited and Rongsheng Optoelectronics (Hong
Kong) Co., Ltd. (BB X E (HE)BRAF), of which the
sales with the Company as at 31 December 2021 amounting
to approximately RMB6,853,000.

The Group obtained financial assistance from Shenzhen
Kenman CFEIIIELEE ), a substantial shareholder of Beijing
Gensir, a substantial shareholder of the Company, and as
at 31 December 2021, the principal and interest due to
Shenzhen Kenman (ZJIIZLE £ ) amounted to approximately

RMB7,905,000 (12% per annum).
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Confirmation of Independence by Independent Non-
Executive Directors

The Company has received the annual confirmation
of independence from all the incumbent independent
nonexecutive directors of the Company pursuant to Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considered them to be
independent.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors of the Company, at
least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was held
by the public as at the date of this report.

Audit Committee

In compliance with Rules 5.28 and 5.33 of the GEM Listing
Rules, the Company has established an audit committee. The
primary duties of the audit committee are to review and to
provide supervision over the financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control system of the Group. The
audit committee comprises two independent non-executive
directors and one non-executive director, namely Mr. Xu
Yongfeng, Mr. Rong Fei and Mr. Yuan Guoliang respectively.
Mr. Xu Yongfeng has been appointed as the chairman of
the audit committee. The audit committee has reviewed the
audited annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021.

Auditors

CCTH CPA Limited (the "CCTH") was re-appointed as
the auditor of the Group by the board of directors of the
Company. The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021 were audited by CCTH whose term
of office will expire upon the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The audit committee has recommended to the board
of directors of the Company that CCTH be re-appointed as
the auditors of the Group at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Corporate Governance

Details of the corporate governance of the Group are set out
in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report.

On behalf of the board of directors

Wu Bo
Chairman

Taiyuan City, Shanxi Province, the PRC
10 June 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors of the Company recognizes the
importance of corporate governance practice of a listed
company and is committed to adopting the standards of
corporate governance.

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code"”) contained
in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules. In the opinion of the
Board of the Company, the Company has complied with the
code provisions except for no arrangement of insurance cover
in respect of legal action against the directors of the Company
(code provisions C.1.8) due to insufficient budget provided.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings
as set out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 (the “Required Standard
of Dealings”) of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by directors. Having
made specific enquiries of all directors of the Company, the
Company was not aware of any non-compliance with the
Required Standard of Dealings regarding securities transactions
by directors for the year ended 31 December 2021.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors of the Company has the collective
responsibility for leadership of, and for promoting the success
of, the Group by directing and supervising the Group'’s affairs.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The board of directors of the Company currently comprises
nine directors, of which four are executive directors, namely
Mr. Zhao Zhi, Mr. Song Zhenglai, Mr. Jiao Baoguo and Ms.
Wang Lingling; two non-executive directors, namely Mr. Yuan
Guoliang and Mr. Wu Bo and three independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Xu Yongfeng, Mr. Wang Weizhong and
Mr. Rong Fei.
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The directors of the Company are appointed for a term of
three years, and are subject to re-election for appointment
by shareholders at the general meeting by the end of each
of three-year period. Given that the nomination process of
candidates for directors of the new session of the Board
has not been completed due to the specific response to the
epidemic, the re-election of the Board of the Company will be
postponed, in order to maintain the continuity of the work of
the Board. The terms of office of the committees under the
fourth session of the Board of the Company will be extended
accordingly. Before the completion of the re-election of the
Board, all members of the fourth session of the Board of
the Company will continue to perform corresponding duties
pursuant to the relevant requirements under relevant laws
and regulations, the GEM Listing Rules and the Articles of
Association of the Company.

The Company has received the annual confirmation
of independence from all the incumbent independent
nonexecutive directors of the Company pursuant to Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considered them to be
independent.

To the knowledge of the directors of the Company, the
members of the board of directors of the Company have
no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships among themselves and between the chairman
and the chief executive officer.

BOARD MEETING

The board of directors of the Company met eleven times
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during the year ended 31 December 2021 and the attendance AAREFEERT+—XEx KEZ
of the members is as follows: HEBRIOT
Number of
attendance
Name of director BEEnR X
Mr. Zhao Zhi A A 11/11
Mr. Song Zhenglai NBUR A 11/11
Mr. Jiao Baoguo ERESLAE 11/11
Ms. Wang Lingling ITRBLL 11/11
Mr. Yuan Guoliang REIRESE 11/11
Mr. Wu Bo RRFEHE 11/11
Mr. Xu Yongfeng FrekE LA 11/11
Mr. Wang Weizhong FEBEE 11/11
Mr. Rong Fei &L 11/11

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2021
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DIRECTOR’S CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

The directors of the Company should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution into
the board of directors of the Company remains informed and
relevant. The individual training record of each director of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2021 is as
follows:
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Updating on the
business, operations
and corporate
governance matter

FHEK RER

TtEEREEZ

Name of director EEnE R &R
Mr. Zhao Zhi HE k& 4
Mr. Song Zhenglai REBREHE v/
Mr. Jiao Baoguo FIREI LA 4
Ms. Wang Lingling FrRERXZ L 4
Mr. Yuan Guoliang RERESE v
Mr. Wu Bo R FHE v/
Mr. Xu Yongfeng STk R SE A 4
Mr. Wang Weizhong FRIBEE 4
Mr. Rong Fei BREE v

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse the board of directors and sees increasing
diversity at the board of directors’ level as an essential
element in maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage.
The Company has adopted the board diversity policy (the
“Policy”). The nomination committee has reviewed the
Policy during the year ended 31 December 2021 and where
appropriate, recommends revision to the board of directors of
the Company for consideration and approval.
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The factors listed below would be used as reference by
the nomination committee in assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate: qualification and experience, character
and integrity, accomplishment and reputation, relevant skills
and experience to contribute to the board of directors,
commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest,
diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Zhao Zhi resigned as the chairman of the board of
directors of the Company on 15 January 2020. Mr. Wu Bo was
appointed as the chairman of the board of directors of the
Company on 16 February 2020.

Mr. Jiao Baoguo resigned as the general manager of the
Company on 11 January 2020. Following the resignation of
Mr. Jiao Baoguo as the general manager of the Company, Mr.
Zhao Taibing was appointed as the general manager of the
Company with effect from 15 January 2020.

The chairman of the board of directors of the Company
provides leadership for the board of directors of the Company
and ensures that the board of directors of the Company works
effectively and performs its responsibilities, and that all key
and appropriate issues are discussed by it in a timely manner.
The chief executive officer is responsible for the management
of the business of the Group, implementation of the policies
and objectives set out by the board of directors of the
Company and is accountable to the board of directors of the
Company for the overall operation of the Group.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has set up three committees including audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee, each committee with its specific terms of reference
as set out in the CG Code.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2021
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with written
terms of reference in consistence with the CG Code. The audit
committee comprises two independent non-executive directors
and one non-executive director, namely Mr. Xu Yongfeng,
Mr. Rong Fei and Mr. Yuan Guoliang. Mr. Xu Yongfeng was
appointed as the chairman of the audit committee.

The primary duties of the audit committee include (i) to
consider the appointment of external auditors and any
questions of resignation or dismissal; (i) to review financial
information and (iii) to oversight of the financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control system. The
audit committee discharged its duties by reviewing the
financial matters, quarterly, interim and annual financial
reports and financial statements during the year ended 31
December 2021. The audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021 have been reviewed by the audit
committee.

The audit committee met four times during the year ended
31 December 2021 and the attendance of the members is as
follows:
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Number of
Attendance
Name of member REHE X
Mr. Xu Yongfeng ST Rk A S A 4/4
Mr. Rong Fei BRREE 4/4
Mr. Yuan Guoliang EER &L 4/4
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE SMEES
The Company has established a remuneration committee with ARNBERYFNEZEES EZ2MBIES

written terms of reference in consistence with the CG Code.
The remuneration committee comprises two independent
nonexecutive directors and one non-executive director, namely
Mr. Rong Fei, Mr. Xu Yongfeng and Mr. Yuan Guoliang. Mr.
Rong Fei was appointed as the chairman of the remuneration
committee.
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The primary duties of the remuneration committee include
(i) to make recommendation to the board of directors on the
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy and
(i) to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals. The remuneration reviewed the remuneration policy
of all directors’ and senior management during the year ended
31 December 2021.

The remuneration committee met one time during the year
ended 31 December 2021 and the attendance of the members
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is as follows: ENRIMNE
Number of
attendance
Name of member RE MR i FE R E
Mr. Rong Fei &L A
Xu Yongfeng FrokE LA 171
Yuan Guoliang RERLEE 1/1
Remuneration paid to members of senior management YRNEMEERBAE (BEEENEE )N
(including directors and supervisors) fell within the following HENF TN EE
bands:
Number of
Individuals
A
RMB 120,000 or below AR®120,0007T AT 12
RMB120,001 — RMB300,000 AR #120,0017c— AR #300,0007C 3
NOMINATION COMMITTEE BEZES
The Company has established a nomination committee AARIEHRITIELETES HEZHBESE
with written terms of reference in consistence with the CG BEA XS ST IR EEeHmESE
Code. The nomination committee comprises the chairman of SEIER IS NGB IERITEE
the board of directors and two independent non-executive ﬁﬁﬂ%i&iﬁf,uﬁiiﬂﬁ S AT

directors, namely Mr. Wu Bo, Mr. Xu Yongfeng and Mr. Wang
Weizhong. Mr. Wu Bo was appointed as the chairman of the
nomination committee.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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The primary duties of the nomination committee include (i) to
review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the board of directors; (ii) to
identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the board of directors and (iii) to make recommendations to
the board of directors on the appointment or re-appointment
of directors. The nomination reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the board of directors of the Company and
the board diversity policy during the year ended 31 December
2021.

The nomination committee met one time during the year
ended 31 December 2021 and the attendance of the members
is as follows:
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Number of
attendance
Name of member REHA HERE
Mr. Wu Bo REFHE 1”1
Mr. Xu Yongfeng kR S A 11
Mr. Wang Weizhong FEBEE 1/1

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company was held on 30
June 2021.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The board of directors of the Company is responsible for
presenting annual; interim; and quarterly reports, price
sensitive announcements and other disclosure requirements
under the GEM Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The audit committee reviewed the financial matters, quarterly,
interim and annual financial reports and financial statements
of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2021.

The respective responsibilities of the directors of the Company
and the auditors for preparing financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditors’ Report” of this annual
report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The board of directors of the Company acknowledged
its responsibility for the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems. In light of the size
and scale of the Group's businesses, the board of directors
of the Company is delegated with the responsibility for
overseeing the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group on an ongoing basis and for reviewing its
effectiveness. Therefore, the Group currently do not have
an internal audit department. During the revision of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group, the
board of directors of the Company identified that the Group
has material uncertainty in going concern.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had net current liabilities
and net liabilities of approximately RMB216,141,000 and
RMB114,420,000 respectively. These conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant
doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and therefore the Group may be unable to realise its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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The directors of the Company have been taking active steps
to improve the liquidity position of the Group. These steps
include:(i) at the capital level, introducing new strategic
investors into the private placement of new shares/bonds,
and negotiating and implementing a debt restructuring plan
with shareholders, borrowers and financial institutions; (ii)
at the operational level, revitalizing the long-term assets and
planning to lease out the properties temporarily not used
in the Company’s business operations, so as to increase the
property income; developing new products for extending the
downstream of the industrial chain and strengthening the
existing sales forces and introducing more capable strategic
sales agencies; and taking the advantage of the technological
advantages accumulated by the Company in the field of
military products to expand into the field of civilian products
and increase new customers and income sources; and (iii) in
respect of liabilities, negotiating and implementing interest
reduction/exemption program with shareholders and borrowers
and seeking financial support from shareholders and borrowers

Provided that these measures can successfully improve the
liquidity position of the Group, the directors of the Company
are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due for the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, the financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis. Should the Group be
unable to operate as a going concern, adjustments would
have to be made to write down the value of assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and
liabilities as current assets and liabilities. The effect of these
adjustments has not been reflected in the financial statements.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The external auditors provide services to the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2021. The remuneration of the
external auditors for the provision of audit service for the year
under review is RMB500,000 and the provision of non-audit
services is RMBNIil.
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AUDITORS

In 2021, CCTH has been re-appointed as the auditors of the
Group. The account for the year ended 31 December 2021
was audited by CCTH whose term of office will expire upon
the forthcoming annual general meeting. The audit committee
has recommended to the board of directors of the Company
that CCTH be re-appointed as the auditor of the Group at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Company Secretary

Ms. Fong Yip Ha of SBA Stone Forest Limited, an external
service provider, has been engaged by the Company as the
company secretary and an authorized representative with
effect from 21 June 2021 in replacement of Ms. Han Lei.

Her primary contact person at the Company is Ms. Guo
Weiwei, secretary of the board of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Ms. Fong has
complied with taking no less than 15 hours of the relevant
professional training requirement under Rule 5.15 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting and
putting forward proposal at shareholders’ meeting

Pursuant to article 53 of the articles of association of the
Company, an extraordinary general meeting (“"EGM") be
convened on the written requisition of shareholder holding
more than 10% (including 10%) of the voting shares issued by
the Company. When the board of directors receives the written
requisition, the board of directors shall convene an EGM within
two months.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Pursuant to article 73 of the articles of association of the
Company, if shareholders request to convene an EGM or
a class meeting of shareholders, the following procedures
should be followed: an EGM may be convened on the written
requisition of any two or more shareholders of the Company
holding more than 10% of the paid up capital of the Company
which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company (the “Requisitionists”). Such written requisition
must specify the resolution(s) to be considered in the EGM
and must be signed by the Requisitionists and deposited at
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
or, in the event the Company ceases to have such principal
office, the registered office of the Company. Shareholders
should follow the requirements and procedures as set out in
such article for convening an EGM. If the board of directors of
the Company does not convene the EGM within 30 days from
the receipt of such requisition, the Requisitionists are entitled
to convene the EGM themselves within four months after the
board of directors of the Company received their requisition at
the Company’s expense.

ENQUIRIES PUT TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries or requests in
respect of their rights to the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong or by email to ccoegw@126.com, for
the attention of the secretary of the board of directors of the
Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company establishes different communication channels
with investors to update the latest business development and
financial performance including the publication of quarterly,
interim and annual reports, notices, announcements and
circulars on the GEM website and the Company’s website in
order to maintain a high level of transparency, and to ensure
there is no selective disclosure of inside information.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRRE HERERBRKE

SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

This is the ESG report of the Group, highlighting its
Environmental, Social, and Governance (the "ESG")
performance, with disclosure reference made to the ESG
Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

This ESG report covers the Group's overall performance in two
subject areas, namely, Environmental and Social of the business
operations in the PRC including the headquarter office and
production facilities from 1 January 2021 to 31 December
2021, unless otherwise stated.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY

In order to identify the most significant aspects for the Group
to report on for this ESG report, key stakeholders including
investors, shareholders and employees of the Group have been
involved in regular engagement sessions to discuss and to
review areas of attention which will help the business meets its
potential growth and be prepared for future challenges.

STAKEHOLDER’S FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our
environmental, social and governance approach and
performance. Please give your suggestions or share your views
with us via email at ccoegvw@126.com.

. Environmental

To demonstrate the Group’s commitment to sustainable
development and compliance with laws and regulations
relating to environmental protection, the Group
endeavors to minimise the environmental impact of the
business activities.

The Group has established system to ensure
environmental compliance. It seeks to optimise its
production by adopting low energy consumption and
environmental pollution techniques, implementing
environmental-friendly waste disposal methods and
enhancing the environmental awareness of the
employees through regular trainings. The management
team has the overall responsibility for environmental
protection matters within the Group.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Emissions

The manufacturing process of the Group produces
certain amount of waste water, solid waste and
to a lesser extent gas. In accordance with relevant
environmental laws and regulations and our relevant
environmental policies, the Group must ensure
that national emissions standards are met. Regular
assessments are conducted on the air and greenhouse
gas emissions of the production facilities, as well
as the generation and disposal of hazardous and
nonhazardous waste. The Group does not generate
significant air emissions or hazardous waste.

Use of Resources

The resources used by the Group are principally
attributed to electricity and water consumed at its
production facilities and office. Under our relevant
environmental policies, the Group proactively seeks
opportunities for increasing operating efficiency to
reduce the use of resources, such as energy savings
on lights and air-conditioning systems. The Group also
closely monitors the utilisation of resources and reports
to senior management on this aspect of performance.

The Environment and Natural Resources

Due to the nature of the business, in addition to the
above-mentioned emissions and resource usage, the
Group does not have any direct and significant impacts
on the environment and natural resources in the course
of its operation.

The Group has established system to ensure
environmental compliance by adopting low energy
consumption and environmental pollution techniques.
The Group has also appointed dedicated staff to
monitor the Group’s compliance with relevant laws and
regulations as well as review and update the internal
environmental protection policies.
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I%

BE-HERERKSE

Social

The Group believes that one of the key aspects
of its success is the good relationship it maintains
with employees. The Group provides a friendly and
harmonious working environment.

Employment and Labor Practices
Employment

The Group had a total number of approximately
380 employees as of 31 December 2021. The Group
rewards and recognises performing staff by providing a
competitive remuneration package and implementing a
sound performance appraisal system with appropriate
incentives, and to promote career development and
progression by appropriate training and providing
opportunities within the Group for career advancement.

The Group strictly complies with relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC, and the relevant administrative
rules and measures are strictly enforced. These rules
and regulations specify the requirements relating to
employment, labor relations, employees’ remuneration
and welfare to protect the rights of employees.

Health and Safety

The Group has been committed to protect employees’
health and safety. It maintains the occupational health
and workplace safety management system and policies
in conformity to the internationally applied occupational
health and safety management systems requirements
and in strict compliance with the relevant regulations in
the PRC. During the Year, the Group did not encounter
any major accidents during the operation.

Development and Training

Training is an important way to improve the overall
quality and provide comprehensive development of the
employees. The Group has continuously perfected and
modified the employee training management system,
established a multilevel training system, created various
learning opportunities for the employees, in order to
enhance their competence, job skills, knowledge and
performance.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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In daily operations, the Group provides induction
training for new employees. Experienced employees
will act as mentors to guide the new comers on jobs.
The Group arranges the trainings designated according
to the roles and responsibilities of the employees,
mainly includes human resources management,
managerial skills, legal affairs, risk management, project
running, financial and auditing, technical research and
development, environmental protection, occupational
health and safety etc. The Group also updates the latest
information of the industry and laws and regulations
which is essential to the Group’s operation and their job
responsibilities from time to time.

Labor Standards

The Group provides its staff with a safe, health,
comfortable working environment with labor protection,
reasonable remuneration and various welfares. The
Group enters employment contract with each of
its employee in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC and prohibits forced labor.

Operating Practices
Supply Chain Management

To provide top quality services to customers, the Group
carefully sourced its raw materials, packaging materials
and equipment with standardized procurement
procedure and policies. The Group’s procurement policy
and its comprehensive procurement management
systems help screening out undesirable products in
the aspects of raw materials, packaging materials and
equipment selection, product formulation, product
packaging, quality management system in factories,
transportation, etc.

Suppliers for raw materials, packaging materials
and equipment are selected based upon rational
and clear criteria, such as reputation, technical skills
and consistent production quality, compliance with
industrial standards, so as to procure superior goods
and services from the most competitive sources. The
Group’s research and development department set out
product specification for the suppliers to follow, while
the quality control department performs sample test to
ensure that goods and materials received by the Group
are in compliance with the quality and specifications
before they are accepted and transferred to the
warehouse.
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Product Responsibility

The Group aims to achieve the highest possible
standard with all the products sold. The Group has
established relevant policies which cover product quality
guarantee and safety and set up a dedicated quality
control department. They work in collaboration with
the Group’s research and development department,
procurement department and production and
warehousing department to ensure that the products
are of high quality and safe and comply with all
applicable laws and regulations.

Anti-corruption

The Group requires employees to strictly conform to
code of business ethics and put any corruption bribe
behavior to an end as stipulated in the employment
contracts and the relevant policies of the Group. In the
cases of conflict of interest, it must be reported to the
Group’s management.

Community
Community Investment

The Group always seeks to be a positive force in the
communities in which it operates and maintain close
communications and interactions with the communities
in order to contribute to local development.

The Group believes that the creation of a peaceful
community relies on the cooperation of people,
corporations and the government. By working together
with various community partners, the Group believes
can bring a tremendous impact on the sustainable
development of the communities in which it operates.

The Group will also actively encourage staff to volunteer
their time and skills to benefit local communities. It
gives employees the opportunities to find out more
about the issues of the society and environment and
reinforce the Group’s corporate values.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2021

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
B - #HE8RERRSE

EmEE
AEEFNAEFRERSTEEN
B AREGIE T HEEEBOR
ABRREERMERERLZE AR
PRI FPIRE B R EDPT - sx PP
REBR BT REAPFIALE
ENRREBAGE BREREER
2U A FTABRED AR B

RE)T
RRERANHNRAEENA BRE
BRE AEBEERETRBETHE
BIEER HBEMES MR
R MANBEFR FERFRAE
BEEEHRR-

#HE

B R E
AEBEZNSHKRAEEMRLR
MIEEANE ¥ —HHELRERTY)
BENEE REBEERELER -

AEEREAE TN EEED
B ERBATERANSE - 588
TRNLEBEENA Y AEEE
TR B A B T AR
EREAPE -

AEEMHERSEE TEENT
By M BRE - AB R AN At [ - {5 1t
RTRERS THREZHELIRE
B AN IER RSB XEE-



Independent Auditor’s Report

CCTH CPA LIMITED
RIEXEEEEIRAQE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SHANXI CHANGCHENG
MICROLIGHT EQUIPMENT CO. LTD.

(Incorporated in the Peoples Republic of China with limited
liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial
statements of Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment
Co. Ltd. and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"Group”) set out on pages 52 to 147, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the
matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section
of our report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion on these consolidated financial statements. In all other
respects, in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
M % BT 3R &

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
(a) Going concern

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements that the Group incurred a loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB40,390,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021
and that as at 31 December 2021, the Group had net
current liabilities and net liabilities of approximately
RMB216,141,000 and RMB114,420,000 respectively.
In addition, as detailed in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had outstanding bank
and other borrowings amounted to approximately
RMB93,708,000 as at 31 December 2021, of which
(i) the borrowings amounted to approximately
RMB92,908,000 have been overdue for repayments
and (ii) the borrowings amounted to approximately
RMB800,000 is repayable within 12 months after 31
December 2021. These conditions indicate the existence
of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt
about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and therefore the Group may be unable to realise its
assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business.

Notwithstanding the aforementioned, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis. Should the going concern basis be
inappropriate, adjustments may have to be made to reflect
the situation that assets may need to be realised at other
than the amounts at which they are currently recorded
in the consolidated statement of financial position. In
addition, the Group may have to provide for further
liabilities that might arise, and to reclassify non-current
assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and
current liabilities respectively.

In the absence of sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to substantiate that the Group can operate as a going
concern, we are unable to form our view as whether it
is appropriate for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
(b) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

As referred to note 16 to the consolidated financial
statement, the carrying amount of the Group's property,
plant and equipment at 31 December 2021 amounted
to approximately RMB114,212,000 and impairment
loss on property, plant and equipment, based on their
estimated replacement costs, amounted to approximately
RMB5,211,000 was recognized in the consolidated
financial statements. We are unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to assess additional
impairment losses, if any, to be made on the Group’s
property, plant and equipment based on their recoverable
amounts, which are the higher of the fair value less cost
of disposal of the related assets and their value in use.
Any adjustments to be made for the impairment of the
Group's property, plant and equipment, if any, might have
significant impacts on the consolidated financial position
of the Group at 31 December 2021 and the Group’s
financial performance for the year then ended.

OTHER MATTERS

Had we not disclaimed our opinion in respect of the matters
described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section above,
we would otherwise have reported the following information
contained in the annual report:

Connected party transactions

As disclosed in note 35, (i) the Group made sales of goods
to related parties at the sale prices of approximately
RMB6,853,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021; and
(i) the Group obtained loans from the holding company of
a substantial shareholder of the Company amounting to
approximately RMB7,905,000 with interest bearing at 12%
per annum. We are unable to obtain relevant documents
to substantiate that these related parties are regarded as
connected parties of the Company and that the transactions
with these related parties are regarded connected party
transactions to be approved by independent shareholders and
to be disclosed in the annual report in accordance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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B & B RS

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA and to issue
an auditor’s report that include our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any person for the contents of this report.
However, because of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we were not able
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a
basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial
statements.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

CCTH CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 10 June 2022

Ng Kam Fai
Practising Certificate Number: P06573

Unit 1510-1517, 15/F.,, Tower 2,
Kowloon Commerce Centre,

No. 51 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

REREREMEZE RS X

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-FT-——#F+-_HA=+—HILFZE

2021 2020
—B=-—-F —E-FTHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
fft &+ AR¥FT ARETFT
(Restated)
(E31)
Revenue W 8 18,417 8,061
Cost of sales and services $HE K PR R AN (15,100) (8,723)
Gross profit/(loss) ERN(ER) 3,317 (662)
Other income, gains and losses, net E g A ~ W25 & & 18 - /F %8 9 2,854 4,022
Impairment loss recognised on MYE - BFEREEER R
property, plant and equipment EEE 16 (5,211) -
Allowance recognised on: A TR 2 BE
— trade receivables —BYE SRR 21 (5,104) (2,121)
— other receivables — H & YR IE 22 (5,000) -
Loss on legal claims recognised ERREEREZEE 25 (5.124) -
Selling and distribution expenses HERSHERAX (353) (554)
Administrative and other operating 7B & E & &5 X
expenses (17,430) (19,464)
Share of loss of an associate DME—KEBE QR B8 - (42)
Finance costs B 75 & 10 (8,406) (9,096)
Loss before tax MR AT 1R (40,457) (27,917)
Income tax expense Frigi A < 11 - -
Loss and total comprehensive FREERFAZHEHBEALRE
loss for the year 12 (40,457) (27,917)
Loss for the year attributable to: WA TG FEREIE:
Owners of the Company ViN/NECTE 7 P =N (40,390) (27,911)
Non-controlling interests FEE AR M A (67) (6)
(40,457) (27,917)
Total comprehensive loss for the LI TEGERASEEBHEEE:
year attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NECTE P =N (40,390) (27,911)
Non-controlling interests JEFE R RE RS (67) (6)
(40,457) (27,917)
Loss per share (RMB) BREE (AR%¥T) 15
— Basic —ENR (0.131) (0.090)

5 Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2021



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B BRI R

As at 31 December 2021 R-ZE-_—4#+_-_H=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
Mt a7 AR¥Frx AR F T
(Restated)
(&E75)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment S ER e 16 114,212 124,325
Right-of-use assets EREEE 17 9,658 9,948
Interests in associates REEERB 2 = 19 - -
123,870 134,273
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 20 10,455 12,696
Trade and bills receivables JEUINE 5 RA M EIE 21 8,486 21,427
Prepayments, deposits and other AR RIE - 2 e R E R
receivables =] 22 5,295 4,140
Cash and cash equivalents ReMBFEE&EFEER 23 399 1,216
24,635 39,479
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Trade payables FETTE 5 BR K 24 8,638 8,958
Accruals and other payables JE & 3R I8 I E b FE 15 R IB 25 110,374 99,277
Contract liabilities AHEE 26 5,522 5,480
Deferred government grants BT & B 29 2,250 2,305
Amounts due to shareholders &S BE SR 5K IR 27 20,284 19,595
Bank and other borrowings RITRHEMEE 28 93,708 81,320
240,776 216,935
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REaEEHE (216,141) (177,456)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BREERRBER
LIABILITIES (92,271) (43,183)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEME
Deferred government grants BT & B 29 19,767 22,017
Amounts due to shareholders &S PR SR 5K IR 27 2,382 -
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 28 - 8,767
22,149 30,784
NET LIABILITIES EEFE (114,420) (73,967)
mﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁktgﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRIk R &R

As at 31 December 2021 R-ZE-—#+_-H=+—H
2021 2020
—E=-—F —E-FTHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
it 2% AR¥ Tt ARKFT
(Restated)
(&%)
EQUITY e
Share capital fi% A< 30 30,886 30,886
Reserves {1 31 (145,190) (104,804)
Deficit attributable to owners RARER AEMEA
of the Company (114,304) (73,918)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR M (116) (49)
TOTAL DEFICIT ON EQUITY EREAAEE (114,420) (73,967)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 52 to 147 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
10 June 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wu Bo
RE
Director

EF

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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FERENMTENHKEAVBHREAN T -
FRATHEESSH AL RETE I

HATEEREREE:

Jiao Baoguo
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REREaR® X

—EC A=t ALFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Bz

— =

Attributable to owners of the Company

ANAREAES
Statutory Non- Total
Issued Capital surplus Other Accumulated controlling  deficit on
capital reserve reserve reserve losses Total  interest equity
EEREH
BORE  EARE fiff  EtRE  ZHER it FERER hEs
RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000
ANRETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2020 R-E-Z5-F-H 30,886 18,561 11,860 977 (108,291) (46,007) (43) (46,050)
Loss and total comprehensive  FREER2AFELAE
for the year - - - - (27.911) (27.91) 6) (27.917)
At 31 December 2020 R-E-Z%
TZR=t-H 30,886 18,561 11,860 977 (136,202) (73,918) (49) (73,967)
At 1 January 2021 R-E--F-8-H 30,886 18,561 11,860 977 (136,202) (73,918) (49) (73,967)
Loss and total comprehensive  BERFR2AEEAE
for the year - - - - (40,390) (40,390) (67) (40,457)
Fair value gain arising from ~~ RREFEL 2 ATERE
shareholders' loan (note 27)  (F227) - - - 4 - 4 - 4
At 31 December 2021 RZE--F&
T-A=1-H 30,886 18,561 11,860 981 (176,592)  (114,304) (116)  (114,420)
WL RN RDER AR

—E-—FEH
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BHE—_FT-_—F+_A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
fft &+ AR TR AR FT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXK s HERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax B B A 5 18 (40,457) (27,917)
Adjustments for: AT HIEELAE:
Interest expense FERX 10 8,406 9,096
Depreciation of property, plant Y- HWEREETE
and equipment 16 4,911 6,553
Depreciation of right-of-use TRAREERE
assets 17 290 293
Deferred government grants BEBm 2 BEEBITEB)
released to profit or loss 9 (2,305) (3,563)
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE WEREEZ
plant and equipment &= (478) -
Interest income A 2 WA 9 (5) (M
Impairment loss on property, ME- -HEREEZ
plant and equipment BEEE 16 5,211 -
Allowance for inventories HREFERE
recognised 458 1,596
Allowance recognised on: BEA T 1R 2 B4
— trade receivables — U E ZERK 5,104 2,121
— other receivables — H {th & WK IE 5,000 -
Loss on legal claims recognised EHRERREZEE 25 5,124 -
Impairment loss recognised on BREEE R A 2 IREER
investments in associates 2 BIEEE 92 374
Share of loss of an associate DI E R REE - 42
Fair value gain on other HmEEz AFEKS
borrowings 9 - (422)
Operating cash flows before RETHPRERE
working capital changes RITEEERH (8,649) (11,828)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEERAL, (1Em) 1,783 (3,315)
Decrease in trade and bills JEWE Z IR R R E B
receivables 7,837 5,404
Increase in prepayments, deposits BRI & & M E Aty
and other receivables JE W SR TE 32 0 (1,155) (362)
Decrease in trade payables FET & 5 BR 5B (320) (74)
Increase in accruals and other JEETE A R EH M ER
payables FRIEIE N 973 30,000
Increase in contract liabilities X OR=RES Il 42 310
Increase in deferred government 3R SE IR 46 B 1 N
grants 29 - 730
Net cash generated from REXBREEZ
operating activities RERBEFH 511 20,865

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.

Annual Report 2021




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTMRNER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE_—T_-—F+_-_HA=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—B=-—-F —TFTHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i 7% AR¥FT ARETFIT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZEBH-BEERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE BER&E
equipment 16 (9) (22,978)
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEWE HELMREZIE
plant and equipment FRIA 478 -
Interest received 2 E 5 1
Advance to an associate BRF—REE QA (92) (374)
Net cash generated from/(used REFBHFRESE " (FFH)
in) investing activities BeREFHE 382 (23,351)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ®BEZBH-BERE
ACTIVITIES
Advance from shareholders PEELE o] 32 2,240 9
Proceeds from other borrowings EW%EZFW—%?K 32 45 7,195
Repayment of bank and other PITR I Y B R
borrowings 32 (3,150) (2,100)
Interest paid EENEES) 32 (845) (1,546)
Net cash (used in)/generated BMEEF (FFA)FEE
from financing activities HERETFH (1,710) 3,558
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE fﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%fﬁlﬁ =
IN CASH AND CASH WA B
EQUIVALENTS (817) 1,072
Cash and cash equivalents at RENzRe MREEE
beginning of the year BH 1,216 144
Cash and cash equivalents at RELXZREREASEE
end of the year HE 399 1,216
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES ReRBRELESEEBBHEH
OF CASH AND CASH 2
EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash RITHBERS 23 399 1,216
TS A8 A

—E=-—

Y
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd. (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC"”) on 10 November 2000 as a joint
stock limited company. The Company’s H shares are listed
on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section of this
annual report.

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) include design,
research, development, manufacture and sale of image
transmission fiber optic products. The principal activities
of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company. All amounts contained in
these consolidated financial statements are rounded to
the nearest thousand of RMB except where otherwise
indicated.

GOING CONCERN BASIS

The Group incurred a loss attributable to owners of
the Company of approximately RMB40,390,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2021 and that as at 31
December 2021, the Group had net current liabilities
and net liabilities of approximately RMB216,141,000 and
RMB114,420,000 respectively. In addition, as detailed
in note 28, the Group had outstanding bank and other
borrowings amounted to approximately RMB93,708,000
as at 31 December 2021, of which (i) the borrowings
amounted to approximately RMB92,908,000 have been
overdue for repayments and (ii) the borrowings amounted
to approximately RMB800,000 is repayable within 12
months after 31 December 2021. These conditions
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that
may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and therefore the Group
may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2021

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-FT-——#F+-_HA=+—HILFZE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

GOING CONCERN BASIS (continued)

The directors of the Company have been taking steps
to improve the liquidity position of the Group. These
steps include (i) negotiating and implementing debts
restructuring plan with shareholders, borrowers and
banker; (ii) negotiating and implementing loan interest
reduction plan with shareholders and borrowers; and (iii)
seeking financial support from substantial shareholders
and borrowers.

Provided that these measures can successfully improve
the liquidity position of the Group, the directors are
satisfied that the Group will be able to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due for the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis. Should
the Group be unable to operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down
the value of assets to their recoverable amounts, to
provide for any further liabilities which might arise and
to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities
as current assets and current liabilities respectively. The
effect of these adjustments has not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

2.

A MBERRWE

2 _E - F+ - A=F—HILFE

FEEEEXE (F)
ARREE-ERE R E A EE
MABESER - X SHBEIE: ()
B S EARBITEENEEE
BEEHR: (VERRREEARES
MEBREERF BT RGDBK
EERRREEANGTEEY -

Ex SR AR E AR BRI
BESWR MESERANEEAKLE
WA RRKEMNEB WA
T-Hit REMBRRCRIFEL
EEERE -MRAEEBEFEL
e Rl ZEETTRBABEEBER
FREHAWOI SR UFHERBEEL
MERE-—FRE UKFERDEE
MIERBEEDHEFH OB RRBE
ENRBEE REZHBENTEL R
BRSBTS ERR A o

EREEMBHREED ([F
BB RELER ) ZETE

FEEBAHERCEBUBREE
R ZAERT &

RAEE - NEE LR RAR S B 5
REBEXREATIAELGMAE
([BREMAE]) B s BBHH
BERA BTN BREFTARZ
Z-—F - -HIAZERBZFE
HJ ] 5 1) A2 2 -

FoMBHmELER  Covid-191H%
F165% BRI A TH 5 R
FRMBHRELR  RREE
EoE - BB G HE—
R FE395% - BB F R
B 75 5 2 R
E79H - BEYH
SR B K
FRMBHRE
R ZE 1657
PACTIRN

WE R AL B RO ERA T
—E-—FEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-FT-——#F+-_HA=+—HILFZE

3. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments?

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between

and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or

Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretations 5

(2020)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies®
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates?

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction?

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment -
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract?

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-
20207

60 Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

APPLICATION OF AMENDEMNTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective: (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April

2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date

to be determined.

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the
term “significant accounting policies” with “material
accounting policy information”. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity's financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if
the amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting
policy information relating to material transactions, other
events or conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses
to disclose immaterial accounting policy information,
such information must not obscure material accounting
policy information.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDEMNTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
(continued)

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements (the “Practice Statement”) is also amended
to illustrate how an entity applies the “four-step
materiality process” to accounting policy disclosures and
to judge whether information about an accounting policy
is material to its financial statements. Guidance and
examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group but may affect the disclosures
of the Group’s significant accounting policies. The
impacts of application, if any, will be disclosed in the
Group’s future consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments define accounting estimates as
“monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty”. An accounting
policy may require items in financial statements to
be measured in a way that involves measurement
uncertainty — that is, the accounting policy may require
such items to be measured at monetary amounts
that cannot be observed directly and must instead
be estimated. In such a case, an entity develops an
accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by
the accounting policy. Developing accounting estimates
involves the use of judgements or assumptions based on
the latest available, reliable information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting
estimates in HKAS 8 is retained with additional
clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not expected to
have significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary users.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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6

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

Significant accounting policies
(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the
voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give
it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

e  the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings
of the other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group,
other vote holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Group has, or does not
have, the current ability to direct the relevant
activities at the time that decisions need to be
made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-FT-——#F+-_HA=+—HILFZE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets, liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein, which represent present ownership interests
entitling their holders to a proportionate share
of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon
liquidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves between
the Group and the non-controlling interests
according to the Group's and the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised.
A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and
is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities
of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) or, when applicable, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statement using the equity method of accounting.
The financial statements of associates used for
equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate. Changes in
net assets of the associate other than profit or loss
and other comprehensive income are not accounted
for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the
Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds the
Group’s interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group's net investment in the associate),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MBERRWE

BE-_FT-——F+_A=1+—HIFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

Interests in associates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which
the investee becomes an associate. On acquisition
of the investment in an associate, any excess of
the cost of the investment over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists,
the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

Interests in associates (continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in the investee with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
When the Group retains an interest in the former
associate and the retained interest is a financial asset
within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and
the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of the relevant interest in the associate is included
in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal
of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate
on the same basis as would be required if that
associate had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or
loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/
partial disposal of the relevant associate.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in
an associate but the Group continues to use the
equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or
loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership
interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate are recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements only to
the extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE_—T_-—F+_-_HA=+—HIFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4. HZEHBHRERZFEREER

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT EESTERE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued) EESTERE(HF)

(d) Foreign currencies (d) s

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading
of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a
disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a partial disposal of an interest in an associate
that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners
of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Foreign currencies (continued)

(e)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets,
including land and buildings, held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at
initial recognition. To the extent the allocation of the
relevant payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in
the consolidated statement of financial position. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in
the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(e) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of assets less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis. The principal useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 50 years or over the lease
terms, whichever is
shorter

Leasehold 10 years or over the lease

improvements terms, whichever is
shorter

Plant and machinery 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 - 10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

U]

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
the date of initial application of HKFRS 16 or
arising from business combinations, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative standalone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to
separate non-lease components from lease
component, and instead account for the lease
component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of properties that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option. Lease
payments on short term leases are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; and

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and
the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid
at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

U]

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in
which the Group applied the practical expedient,
the Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or more
underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by
an amount commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope and
any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for
as a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability based on the lease term of the modified
lease by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the effective date of
the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to
the relevant right-of-use asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MBERRWE

BE-_FT-——F+_A=1+—HIFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease modifications (continued)

When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate
stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

When the modified contract contains one or more
additional lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the modified contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component. The associated
non-lease components are included in the respective
lease components.

Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a
direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the
Group has elected to apply the practical expedient
not to assess whether the change is a lease
modification if all of the following conditions are
met:

o the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration for
the lease immediately preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021; and

e  there is no substantive change to other terms
and conditions of the lease.

REMBRRZEREER
BEEEHRE(E)

BEESTHRE (&)

() HE (&)
EEBERERBA (B)
HEEET (&)

EREFTANESHEMAK Y
AR —IRZ ARRSMEE S IFH
AR AEEREEE
AR ER > RO AR S B8 S 3F
SRR B L ERER
RIEFTANTMRESEESH
SHEKERD

ERERIANEE - RAZHE
SMEE AR ER D B - AN ERIE
HEEKE D ARSI B
RHEETEHNTHRESEES
HE AR E 7 - HHEESERE M
WA AZBNHEAKES -

Covid-19tH 570 2 Bl %

FCovid-19RIBHEEFETEL
MABES RS  AEED
BEREAERET AN IET G

HHRENEHER KA
ZERKCA T P A 1R

s MHENRZEHEHER
EREMEN MEEHRZ

RERERZHHNEE
RERBER HPDRE
EEHANEERE:

s HMENRZERIBMEER
ZRIPEAR T - —F
NA=ZtTH&ZH 2
/3

o MEZEAMERLGEEL

=R

WE R AL B RO ERA T
—E-—FEH

17



78

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

U]

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Covid-19-related rent concessions (continued)

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts
for changes in lease payments resulting from rent
concessions the same way it would account for
the changes applying HKFRS 16 if the changes are
not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of
lease payments are accounted for as variable lease
payments. The related lease liabilities are adjusted
to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit
or loss in the period in which the event occurs.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified
as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying
asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as
a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset,
and such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-
lease components, the Group applies HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated
from lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone selling prices.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MBERRWE

BE-_FT-——F+_A=1+—HIFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

(9)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessor (continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
for under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments from
lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that
were not part of the original terms and conditions
are accounted for as lease modifications, including
lease incentives provided through forgiveness or
reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an
operating lease as a new lease from the effective
date of the modification, considering any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to the original lease
as part of the lease payments for the new lease.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average basis. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
all production overhead expenditure, and where
appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-FT-——#F+-_HA=+—HILFZE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contract with Customers (“HKFRS
15"). Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability, and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees or points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_-_FT_-_—F+-_H=1+—HIFE

REMBRRZEREER
BEEEHRE(E)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4,
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued) EESTERE(HF)
(h) Financial instruments (continued) (h) €EMI A (£&)
Financial assets ETHEE

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset from the next reporting period.
If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-FT-——#F+-_HA=+—HILFZE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL") model on financial
assets (including trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables and bank balances) which are
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”). The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
("12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. Assessment is done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables without significant financing
component. The ECL on trade receivables are
assessed on individual basis.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, in which case the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE_—T_-—F+_-_HA=+—HIFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4. #HREMBEBRRZGHEER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT EEQ—H&% (%)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued) EESTERE(HF)
(h) Financial instruments (continued) (h) €EMI A (£&)
Financial assets (continued) EREE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) EREEHE (&)
(i)  Significant increase in credit risk () EERRBAEZIEN
In assessing whether the credit risk has P EEfS B 918 R A R {E
increased significantly since initial recognition, ERBAEDBEELE N
the Group compares the risk of a default AEBHNRRE AR

occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both
guantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

J significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the
debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-FT-——#F+-_HA=+—HILFZE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

J an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes
that the credit risk on a debt instrument
has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if (a) it has
a low risk of default; (b) the borrower has a
strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term; and (c)
adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure
that the criteria are capable of identifying
significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

(i)  Definition of default
For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full.

(iii)  Credit impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events of default that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about
the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-FT-——#F+-_HA=+—HILFZE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iii)  Credit impaired financial assets (continued)
(d) it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation.

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of
the probability of default, loss given default
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a
default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data
and forward-looking information. Estimation
of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)
Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based
on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire. On derecognition of a financial asset
measured at amortised cost, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of a group
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Financial instruments (continued)

(@

()]

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial liabilities

The Group’'s financial liabilities including trade
payables, other payables and bank and other
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents represent cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the
customer.

A performance obligation represents goods (or
a bundle of goods) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods that are substantially the same.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MBERRWE

BE-_FT-——F+_A=1+—HIFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

(k)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
goods.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration for
the effects of the time value of money if the timing
of payments agreed (either explicitly or implicitly)
provides the customer or the Group with a
significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods
or services to the customer. In those circumstances,
the contract contains a significant financing
component. A significant financing component may
exist regardless of whether the promise of financing
is explicitly stated in the contract or implied by
the payment terms agreed to by the parties to the
contract.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-FT-——#F+-_HA=+—HILFZE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Existence of significant financing component
(continued)

For contracts where the period between payment
and transfer of the associated goods or services is
less than one year, the Group applies the practical
expedient of not adjusting the transaction price for
any significant financing component.

() Employee benefits
(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

(ii) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to
profit or loss represents contributions payable
by the Group to the funds.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of the dates when the Group can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits
and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs and involves the payment of termination
benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(m) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally
and used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset.
The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of
the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of
the Group that are outstanding during the period,
other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

(n) Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to it and that the
grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred
and recognised in profit or loss over the period to
match them with the costs they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(n)

(o)

Government grants (continued)

Government grants relating to the purchase of
assets are deducted from the carrying amount of
the assets. The grant is recognised in profit or loss
over the life of a depreciable asset by way of a
reduced depreciation charge.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
recognised in profit or loss because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences,
unused losses or unused tax credits can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(o) Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle
its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises
the right-ofuse assets and the related lease
liabilities, the Group first determines whether the
tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(o)

(p)

Taxation (continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences on initial recognition of
relevant right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
not recognised due to application of the initial
recognition exemption. Temporary differences
arising from subsequent revision to the carrying
amounts of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
resulting from remeasurement of lease liabilities and
lease modifications, that are not subject to initial
recognition exemption are recognised on the date
of remeasurement or modification.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purpose of allocating
resources and assessing the performance of the
Group's various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to
the Group.

(i)

A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(a)

(b)

(@

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company or of a parent
of the Company

An enity is related to the Group (reporting
entity) if any of the following conditions
applies:

(d)

®)

(9)

The entity and the Company are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiaries
and fellow subsidiaries is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-FT-——#F+-_HA=+—HILFZE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(q) Related parties (continued)

(i) An enity is related to the Group (reporting
entity) if any of the following conditions
applies: (continued)

(h) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

(i) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

() A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(k) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Company or to a parent of the Company.

(r) Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MBERRWE

BE-_FT-——F+_A=1+—HIFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (continued)

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an asset individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units to
which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared
with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to
a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the
carrying amount of a group of cash-generating
units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units,
with the recoverable amount of the group of cash-
generating units. In allocating the impairment loss,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit or the group of cash-generating units. The
carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit or
the group of cash-generating units. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(s) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

CRITICAL JUDGMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgments that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in

the consolidated financial statements apart from those
involving estimations, which are dealt with below.

Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of which
depends upon the favourable outcomes of the steps
being taken by the directors of the Company as described
in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-FT-——#F+-_HA=+—HILFZE

5. CRITICAL JUDGMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

(a) Property plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets, depreciation and impairment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges
for the Group’s property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives and
residual values of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets of similar nature and
functions. The Group will revise the depreciation
charge where useful lives and residual values are
expected to be different from those previously
estimated, or the Group will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets.

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets are evaluated for possible impairment on a
specific asset basis or in groups of similar assets,
as applicable. This process requires management’s
estimate of the fair value with reference to a
valuation report of each asset or group of assets
less cost of disposal. For any instance where this
evaluation process indicates impairment, the
relevant asset’s carrying amount is written down
to the recoverable amount and the amount of the
write-down is charged against the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MBERRWE

BE-_FT-——F+_A=1+—HIFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

CRITICAL JUDGMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(b) Allowance for credit losses of trade receivables

(c)

Trade receivable with credit-impaired are assessed
for ECL individually. In addition, the Group uses
practical expedient in estimating ECL on trade
receivables which are not assessed individually
using collective assessment. The provision rates are
based on ageing, repayment history and/or past due
status of respective trade receivables as groupings
of various debtors taking into consideration the
Group’s historical default rates and forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable
available without undue costs or effort. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in note 21.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expense. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of manufacturing and selling
products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor
actions. The Group will reassess the estimates by the end
of each reporting period.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

During the reporting period, the capital structure of
the Group consists of debt which includes interest-
bearing loans and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.
The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the associated risks
and take appropriate actions to adjust the Group’s
capital structure. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from that of the prior year.

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios, so that it can continue to provide returns
for the shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to
reduce debts. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Management regards equity attributable to owners
of the Company as capital, for capital management
purpose. Such equity at 31 December 2021 represents
deficit on equity attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to approximately RMB114,304,000 (2020:
RMB73,918,000).

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_-_FT_-_—F+-_H=1+—HIFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by the total capital plus net
debt. Net debt includes trade payables, accruals and
other payables, amounts due to shareholders and bank
and other borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.
Total capital includes equity attributable to owners of
the Company. The gearing ratios as at the end of the

EXREERR (&)

AREEBBABIFRERIABERER
MEBFRAESHNERAFBERRK
ERERN-ERFRERENE SR
oA BB R EAMEN R BN
BERRIBEALRITREMEE  BE
RehkReEERE -BEXERERE
ARBEE ANEIERED  RNREHR

reporting period were as follows:

ZERBEEMT :

2021 2020

—B=-—-F —EFTF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR%Fr ARMTFIT

Trade payables B E SRR 8,638 8,958
Accruals and other payables JE &t R I8 K H A FE A 5RIB 110,374 99,277
Amounts due to shareholders FETRE BB 7R 1B 22,666 19,595
Bank and other borrowings RITRHEMEE 93,708 90,087

Less: Cash and cash equivalents BERehBE2SEER (399) (1,216)
Net debt B HER 234,987 216,701

Deficit attributable to owners of the RANBHEA AEEEA

Company (114,304) (73,918)
Capital and net debt BARREBFEE 120,683 142,783
Gearing ratio BERBER 195% 152%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-FT-——#F+-_HA=+—HILFZE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency
risk as most of its business transactions are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of the
Group entities. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of
foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities.
The Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure
closely and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

(b) Credit risk

The Group has significant concentration of credit
risk arising from its ordinary course of business
due to its small customer bases and limited
counterparties involved. This credit risk mainly arises
from the Group’s trade and other receivables. The
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debtor at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate provision for
impairment is made for irrecoverable amounts.
There is no requirement for collaterals by the Group.

At 31 December 2021, the Group had
concentration of credit risk relating to its customers
as the amounts due by the Group’s largest debtor
of RMB3,552,000 (2020: RMB12,065,000) and the
Group's largest three debtors of RMB5,945,000
(2020: RMB18,519,000) at 31 December 2021
represent approximately 42% (2020: 56%) and
70% (2020: 86%) respectively of the Group’s total
trade and bills receivables at that date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BE_FT_—F1T-_A=+—HIFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(c)

The Group considers whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of financial assets
on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting
period by comparing the risk of a default occurring
as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at
the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information. Especially the following information is
used:

- internal credit rating;

— actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower; and

- significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the borrower,
including changes in the payment status of
borrowers.

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed
if a debtor is more than 30 days past due in
making a contractual payment, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise. A default on a financial
asset has occurred when the counterparty fails to
make contractual payments within 365 days after
the payments fall due.

Trade and other receivables are written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such
as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan
with the Group. The Group normally categorises a
loan or receivable for write off when a debtor fails
to make contractual payments after 270 days past
due. Where loans or receivables have been written
off, the Group, if practicable and economical,
continues to engage in enforcement activity to
attempt to recover the receivable due.

Interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant assets and liabilities
which carry interests at variable interest rates,
the Group's operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.
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e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-FT-——#F+-_HA=+—HILFZE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
(d) Liquidity risk
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted

7. UHERER (&)

(d)

REBE SRR

REBZBRATEMEE B AT
BHNRBESH R BEARSE
B RFEF MR SR AN

AEETRABERMARER

cash flows, of the Group’'s financial liabilities is as REIERRE ST T
follows:
Weighted ~ Repayable ~ More than
average  ondemand 1 year but Total
interest  or less than less than undiscounted Carrying
2021 rate 1 year 2years  cash flows amount
REX 10 E AER
ZBz-% METHHNE  FIME  BIWE REREBLE REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRE ARETRT ARETR AREFR
Trade payables ENESRR - 8,638 - 8,638 8,638
Accruals and other payables et A R A e TR - 110,374 - 110,374 110,374
Amounts due to shareholders R R A 4.35% 20,382 2,40 22,823 22,666
Bank and other borrowings ROREMEE 2%-30% 93,800 - 93,800 93,708
233,194 2,441 235,635 235,386
Weighted Repayable More than
average  on demand 1 year but Total
interest ~ or less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
2020 rate 1 year 2 years cash flows amount
REX 160 E AEH
IS %12 METHIE  HIME EIRE RERELE REE
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETR
Trade payables EREZER - 8,958 - 8,958 8,958
Accruals and other payables fExt3 IE&HWEH = 99,277 - 99,277 99,277
Amounts due to shareholders J;ﬁﬁxﬁ 3 4.35% 20,373 - 20,373 19,595
Bank and other borrowings RTREMES 2%-30% 88,767 9,397 98,164 90,087
217,375 9,397 226,772 217,917
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_-_FT_-_—F+-_H=1+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7. BKRRER (&)
(continued)
(e) Categories of financial instruments (e) EMIAZSE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ET-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000

(f)

AR FRT ARETT

Financial assets: TREE:
Financial assets at amortised cost  HEEK A E2 S MEE
— Trade and bills receivables —ERE ZERREE
— Deposits and other receivables — iR RE M EWKRIA
— Cash and cash equivalents —ERERE
RekReFBEEER
Financial liabilities: SREE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost ZE K At Er SR EBE
— Trade payables —ERNESER
— Financial liabilities included — P AFEET A R E A FET
in accruals and other payables REzERmBE
— Amounts due to shareholders — B IRE A
— Bank and other borrowings —HRITRAEMEE
Fair value (f)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities as recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their respective fair values. The fair
values of financial assets and financial liabilities
have been determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on a discounted
cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs
being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk
of counterparties.

8,486 21,427
3,355 2,166
399 1,216
12,240 24,809
8,638 8,958
110,374 99,277
22,666 19,595
93,708 90,087
235,386 217,917

AT

G & B R PO R 8 S A5
2ARESWAE RS MAMY
PREMESRA S 50 AFEEE -
SHAERSBEEZ ATVED
REAREEEAERUARS
REDNEE  ABHEABA
8% R F ) (5 H AR
B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-FT-——#F+-_HA=+—HILFZE

REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT 8. WEREEIHEHR
INFORMATION
The Group’s revenue and results from business operations REEEBLEEZRANFEETER
were mainly derived from its sale of fiber optic inverters, BHE R AR HBER
fiber optic straight plates, fiber optic face plates, fiber AR ?ﬁﬁﬁ&?ﬁﬁ@?ﬁﬁi( T [ R
optic tapers, fiber optic tapers billets and microchannel Eml) HRRAE-—S2HHE HA
plates (collectively referred to as “Fiber Optic Products”), RNABIES (Eﬂig,ﬁé?—iﬁiﬁ% (I=
which is regarded as a single reportable segment in a BICEREE]) VERNBE2RERA
manner consistent with the way in which information HERIEERBN G2 AR -
is reported internally to the directors of the Company, DEER DEEERDEAGZ
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM"), EHMIFELEAREERNITZ®R
for purposes of resource allocation and performance GEBRREMPEKGERRGEER
assessment. The measures of segment results, segment B R —B e AL - FREREIREEIN
assets and segment liabilities are consistent with the BAZYHEER -
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and the consolidated statement
of financial position which are reported internally to the
CODM. Accordingly, no segment information is presented
other than entity-wide disclosures.
Entity-wide disclosures EREE
(a) Information about products (a) EFERBZEHR
The following table sets forth the total sales to TREFMIILEFIEEN LR
external customers by products and the percentage B(RER) RMhRKR=Ez A
of total revenue by products: 3 E (FRE mEt) -
2021 2020
—B=-—-F —TTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®Fr ARKF T
Revenue, gross amount W B %E 18,437 25,258
Less: Sale returns (note) B HERE (KaE) (20) (17,197)
Revenue, net of sale returns Was - HBRHEERE 18,417 8,061

1 08 Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE_—T_-—F+_-_HA=+—HIFE

REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT 8. WERKENEERN (&)
INFORMATION (continued)
Entity-wide disclosures (continued) EREE (&)
(a) Information about products (continued) (a) EBERBZER (&)
2021 2020
—B--F —_T-FHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMEFT % AREFT %
Fiber optic inverters St Ralic e 12,383 67 4,988 62
Fiber optic straight plates Yt & B IR 1,552 9 2,867 36
Fiber optic face plates K EE R 785 4 104 1
Fiber optic tapers DIk 1,269 7 251 3
Microchannel plates BB R 2,428 13 (647) (8)
Others Hh - - 498 6
18,417 100 8,061 100
Note: In the prior year ended 31 December 2019, certain M-8z -—Z—NLF+ - A

goods were sold by the Group to three customers
for an aggregate sale price of RMB17,197,000 and
the sales were recognised as the Group’s revenue for
that year. During the prior year ended 31 December
2020, the customers claimed the related goods to
be defective and made returns of these goods to
the Group, accordingly, adjustments for these sale
returns amounted to RMB17,197,000 were made
against the Group's revenue for the year ended 31
December 2020.

During the prior year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group made certain modifications to the goods
returned in accordance with certain customer’s
requirements and thereafter sold these goods to
the customers at the sale price of approximately
RMB14,195,000, which was recognised in the
consolidated financial statements and was included
in the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31
December 2020.

=t— Euti FE AEH
MExREFPHEZETER
BIHEE AR®17,197,000
TIRZEHERZTERR
ABREBZRZE BHEZTZ
TF+ZA=+—HB1L—
FE -BEFEFEBEEERTE
B - TRASEREZS
BEm At - BEZZT-ZF
+ZA=+—RALFE B
REBZWERZEHER
BE& 8 AR17,197,0007T
fERF% -

HE2E_ZT_ZF+ =8
=t+—HLEE—FE AEH
BEETEFPZERYEER
EE@REDE TIER]  Higlk
HEELH ARBE14,195,000
kaﬁéﬁﬁ%%ﬁ HE
RFAPBRRERLTA
REEHE-_T-_TF+=
A=t+—BLFEZWS-

mﬁﬁiﬁwtasmwﬁmm 1 09
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %= —

T —Ff A=t —HILEE

— =

8. REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT

INFORMATION (continued)
Entity-wide disclosures (continued)

(b) Geographical information

The Group principally operates in the PRC and the
Group’s non-current assets are all located in Shanxi,

the PRC.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue

8. WakE&sBEHR (&)

EERE (&)
(b) HEHEH
AEBEBRFBEETEE M

AEBZIFRBDEES

B 117 e

Ef A ep

AEERBINBFF 2 Wk 12t

from external customers by geographical location. HAUBESTHOT :
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥MFR ARETFT
The PRC h 10,302 11,751
Hong Kong BB 3,444 (5,115)
Russia REHT 3,389 866
Europe BOM 1,092 559
Middle East s 190 -
18,417 8,061

(c) Information about major customers (c) BEFEEFZEH

Revenue from major customers, each of whom
contributed to 10% or more of the total revenue, is

XEIRZJE (BEREPMLBI
W2 10%8 A F) 2 WamE i

set out below: T
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥FT ARBF T
Customer A EPEH 3,555 4,320
Customer B ®¥PZ 3,885 3,222
Customer C (note i) ZER (M) 2,968 N/A
Customer D (note i) BPET (M) 2,285 N/A
Customer E (note ii) BRI (KEEii) N/A 12,562
Customer F (note i) 2P (M) N/A 2,211

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2021




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

Entity-wide disclosures (continued)
(c) Information about major customers
(continued)

Notes:

(i) The customers did not contribute over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020.

(i)  The customers did not contribute over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021.

(d) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers

8.

A MBERRWE

BE-_FT-——F+_A=1+—HIFE

WEREETEEN (B)

EENE (&)
() ERFEEEFEFZEH (&

it -
ZEEPUARERE 2=
TE+-AS+—RIEEREY
#0036 R ERRR10% A k-

(i)

(il ZEEPHAEEBEZE_T
T+ -RA=t+—HIEFE
ZHREARERE10%A Lo

(d) REEFEXNZWEDHF

2021 2020
—E-—-F —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR®FT
Geographical markets h [ 71 35
The PRC A 10,302 11,751
Hong Kong BA 3,444 (5,115)
Russia % 78 2 3,389 866
Europe &M 1,092 559
Middle East FIR 190 -
18,417 8,061
Major products FEEMm
Fiber optic inverters St 3 15 25 12,383 4,988
Fiber optic straight plates i =R 1,552 2,867
Fiber optic face plates S 4 TE AR 785 104
Fiber optic tapers 3t 8 1,269 251
Microchannel plates B ER 2,428 (647)
Others Hib - 498
18,417 8,061
Timing of revenue recognition T T2 8 5 T
At point in time AR fE 26 18,417 8,061

WA RBHKEMROBRD A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-FT-——#F+-_HA=+—HILFZE

REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT 8. WEREEIEEN (&)
INFORMATION (continued)
Manufacturing and sales of Fiber Optic Products HEEMBERHEE
The Group manufactures and sells of fiber optic prodcuts AEBRERATFPHEEABER-
to the customers. Sales are recognised when control of HENBEREmOEHIEE (BEm®D
the products has transferred, being when the products RNEP )R WM FERETER
are delivered to a customer, there is no unfulfilled FHEMNEIXNEFEESERD
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of BIEMARNARBITOER -
the products and the customer has obtained legal titles to
the products.
Sales to customers are normally made with credit HEMBLHATEFPIOKAEFAHR -
terms of 90 days. For new customers, deposits or cash HRFEP Al ERKEREeE
on delivery may be required. Deposits received are MR- BN EERRABEHNEE-
recognised as a contract liability.
A receivable is recognised when the products are FEBGRIBRE MR TEFPEHER -
delivered to the customers as this is the point in time SRR B A EGYE  BRERNK
that the consideration is unconditional because only the BB 2 A& 7R BE s R 7 487 o
passage of time is required before the payment is due.
OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 9. HfttlA - hEREE B8
2021 2020
—E- - —T-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AREFT
Deferred government grants released to B E 1828 7 EE KT E B
profit or loss (note 29) (Bta£29) 2,305 3,563
Bank interest income RITH B HA 5 1
Gross rental income from transmitting B afe WAL
station 23 23
Fair value gain on other borrowings HMEE 2 A FEKRS
(note 28) (KyaE28) - 422
Gain on disposal of property, plant and  HEY % - E K& 2 WS
equipment 478 -
Foreign exchange losses ME 5 B 18 (37) (28)
Others HAth 80 41
2,854 4,022

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE-_FT-——F+_A=1+—HIFE

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. MK EH
2021 2020
—E-—F —E_TF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ Tt ARKTFIT
Interest on bank borrowing RITEEF S 780 876
Interest on other borrowings HEEEF S 6,726 8,584
Interest on amounts due to shareholders & {~f J% 58 218 2 A & 835 797
Interest on discounted bills receivable BRI EE 2 F B 65 -
8,406 10,257
Less: Interest wavier granted B ERZFBERR
— Other borrowing —HiEE - (677)
— Amounts due to shareholders —FET AR R FIB - (484)
8,406 9,096
11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. FiIBHAX
2021 2020
—_E_—F —_EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARKTFIT
Current tax: BOEARR 1A
- Hong Kong profits tax —BABMEM - -
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax —FE D EER - -

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax and the PRC
Enterprise Income Tax has been made in the consolidated
financial statements as the Group had no assessable
profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong and PRC for
both of the years presented. Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax
prevailing in the jurisdiction in which the Group operates.

HRAEEXMESHRFELELET
BRPEELXKREBENTEZE
ARBOE N B ERN AR A MR K
AHRRANBR AT BREEMAEHRE
o HAb % 2 FEER T A TR AN &
BREXBMAEREERER Z MK
AR ©

WE R AL B RO ERA T
—E-—FEH
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

According to the applicable Enterprise Income Tax Law
of the PRC, the Company, which operates in the Taiyuan
Economic and Technology Development Zone (KR4
FEF TR ER), the PRC, and which is registered as a
New and High Technical Enterprise (f@#T i iT>%), is
entitled to a concessionary Enterprise Income Tax rate
of 15% over 3 years, beginning on 29 November 2018.
The certificate was renewed on 7 December 2021, so the
Company is entitled to another concessionary Enterprise
Income Tax rate of 15% over 3 years, until 6 December
2024. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Company was still entitled to a concessionary Enterprise
Income Tax rate of 15% (2020: 15%).

The income tax expense can be reconciled to the loss
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as follows:

11.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-FT-——#F+-_HA=+—HILFZE

FREBiEx (&)

AR BE B K R 488 1l 3 |
EEVFM AR RS  REF
BEBACEMSHRE AIR=_F—N
F+—AZ+NLHBHE3FRNZE15%
ZEEMBHREIME -ZFEER
—E-—F+-A+BHEE EIK
NEERR=ZFANRTEEIS%Z2H
¥FEHERRE EE T _NF
+-AXNB-BE2_Z-_—F+_A
=+ —BLEFE -ARENEAB15%
(ZZ_TF 1 15% ) 2 EMBHRE
BERE

FEREETRES AEREMEE
W& AR AT B R T

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARETFIT
(Restated)
(&%)
Loss before tax BRI ATE 1R (40,457) (27,917)
Tax calculated at the domestic tax rate of IZEIAFI=T15% (ZE-F
15% (2020: 15%) F 5% )T E 2T (6,068) (4,188)
Tax effect of revenue not taxable for tax HBERHRIKE 2B &
purposes (346) (597)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for A HIFFA S 2 RS £
tax purposes 5 2
Tax effect of temporary differences not  RERZHIBEZRE 7 HIBHE
recognised 4,142 796
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERHIBEBE 2R TE 2,267 3,987

Income tax expense FT 15 %t &
As at 31 December 2021, the Group has estimated
unused tax losses and other deductible temporary
differences totalled approximately RMB67,641,000 (2020:
RMB47,405,000) available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of such tax losses and other deductible temporary
differences due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The unused tax losses of approximately
RMB40,027,000 at 31 December 2021 (2020:
RMB42,098,000) is due to expire within one to five years
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the Group
in which the losses arise.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_-_FT_-_—F+-_H=1+—HIFE

12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 12. FREE
The Group’s loss for the year is arrived at after charging:— REEZFANEBENBRNATIER :
2021 2020
—E=--F —T_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%Fr ARBTFIT
Auditors’ remuneration Z 2R B & 500 379
Cost of inventories sold HEFBEKRAR 15,100 8,723
Staff costs (including directors’ EIRA(BIEEEZ=HS)
remuneration)
Wages and salaries ITENES 11,708 11,086
Pension scheme contributions RIRETEI 3K 5,544 2,791
17,252 13,877
Depreciation of property, plant and YME BB MREITE
equipment 4,911 6,553
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEITE 290 293
Net foreign exchange losses bE 5 B 1R 558 37 28
Share of loss of an associate DR —REE QR 2 BB - 42
Research and development costs B 7% % A B A AR 741 836
Impairment loss recognised on HEERRAREERZ
investments in associates VEREY ! 92 374
Allowance for inventories recognised ERRTERE 458 1,596

WA RBHKEMROBRD A
SR -FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-FT-——#F+-_HA=+—HILFZE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 13. EEREEERSHFALTZEE
INDVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS
(a) DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S (a) EERTETHAEZHE
EMOLUMENTS
Details of directors’ and chief executive's FRNEERFETHRAE Z N
remuneration for the year are as follows: FEIBIS
2021 2020
—E=-—F —ETFTF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFRT ARETT

Fees ok 348 348
Other emoluments Hib B2
Salaries, allowances and benefits Fe EMREVEH
in kind 8 8
Pension scheme contributions RIRET IR 2 2
358 358
The emoluments of each director and the chief REERTBITHAS MK
executive, on a named basis, are set out below: 2N

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-E--$+-A=+-BLEE

Salaries,
allowances
and other Pension
benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions emoluments
D=1
REM BIR

e  EWERN  HEHR  MHeAE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTTL ARETRL ARETT ARETR

Executive directors: HOEE:
Song Zhenglai RER 48 - - 48
Wang Lingling IR 36 8 2 46
Zhao Zhi e 36 - - 36
Jiao Baoguo ERE 36 - - 36
Non-executive directors: EHTESE:
Yuan Guoliang RER 36 - - 36
Wu Bo RK 48 - - 48
Independent non-executive B FRTES:
directors:
Xu Yongfeng FakE 36 - - 36
Wang Weizhong TER 36 - - 36
Rong Fei Epild 36 - - 36

348 8 2 358

1 1 6 Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_-_FT_-_—F+-_H=1+—HIFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (continued) & (&)

(a) DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S (a) EERFTETHAEZHME
EMOLUMENTS (continued) (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-ZF+-A=1+-HLEFE

13. EEREBREHFA LM

Salaries,
allowances
and other Pension
benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions  emoluments
e 2R
REM RIK
we  EBUEAN  HEHF  Megs
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANREFT AREFT AREFT AREFRL
Executive directors: HITES:
Song Zhenglai REK 48 48
Wang Lingling IRK 36 2 46
Zhao Zhi HE 36 - - 36
Jiao Baoguo ERE 36 - - 36
Non-executive directors: EHTES:
Yuan Guoliang RER 36 - - 36
Wu Bo 2R 48 - - 48
Independent non-executive By FHITES:
directors:
Xu Yongfeng ATk EL 36 - - 36
Wang Weizhong FHEA 36 - - 36
Rong Fei Epild 36 - - 36
348 8 2 358

WE R AL B RO ERA T
—E-—FEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE—_ZT-—F+_A=+—HIFEE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 13. EEREEREFALTZH
INDVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (continued) & (E&)
(b) SUPERVISORS' REMUNERATION (b) ES=E=%H
Details of supervisors’ remuneration for the year are FANESZHMNFBROT:
as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt ARBTIT
Fees we - -
Other emoluments =l

Salaries, allowances and benefits HFa 2 NEWER
in kind

Pension scheme contributions RIRET SR

The emoluments of each supervisor, on a named
basis, are set out below:

75
17

92

REZZHFMREREIIMT -

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-E--f4+-A=+-BL¥E

Salaries,
allowances
and other Pension
benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions emoluments
23R4
RHEA RIK
we  BUEN  EMR MEeAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AREFrn AREFTr ARETR
Han Xiaoou BER - - _ _
Dong Yonghong EWN . - _ _
Song Zhenbao RRE - > - >
- 5 - 5

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_-_FT_-_—F+-_H=1+—HIFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 13. EERTE BB HFALTZM
INDVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (continued) & (&)
(b) SUPERVISORS’' REMUNERATION (continued) (b) EESEHEN (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_T-_TF+_A=-+-BLFE

Salaries,
allowances
and other Pension
benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions  emoluments
e 2H
REAM RIK

we  EWEN  HEER  Hess
Note ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
M ARBTT AREBTR ARBTT ARETR

Han Xiaoou BRI - 15 4 19
Dong Yonghong ERPN - 50 13 63
Song Zhenbao RIRE - 5 - 5
Yuan Shaopu =R (i) - 5 - >
- 75 17 92
Note: Bt it
() Mr. Yuan Shaopu (“Mr. Yuan”), a supervisor of (i) ARABESEHHLE (IR
the Company, resigned as a supervisor of the EE]EBREARARAIESS
Supervisory Committee of the Company with effect ZEE B -_FTF+—A
from 16 November 2020. TRBRER-
There was no arrangement under which a director, FAWEEMNES FBTHA
the chief executive or a supervisor waived or agreed BRESENREXRENET
to waive any remuneration during the year. I3 2 2k -
During the year, no emoluments were paid by FRN AEBTERES TZ
the Group to a director, the chief executive or a THABSESE HMERBE
supervisor as an inducement to join, or upon joining EABEMASINBERERR 2
the Group, or as compensation for loss of office. #EEh S BB (E o

uEEAtctEBEARAT 110
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(c) FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL
EMOULMENTS
None (2020: none) of the five highest paid
individuals of the Group were the directors whose
emolument is set out in the above. For the year
ended 31 December 2021, the five (2020: five)
highest paid employees’ emoluments were as

BE—_ZT-—F+_A=+—HIFEE

13. EENRTERBBREHFALTZM
& (&)

() EEBEFALZME

rEERAEREFATIHESR
(Z2EZZTF :®BES HM2
HBEERLEX -HE_TE——F
+-A=+—HLFE #TH
F(ZE-_TF AZ)ReH

follows: EBEZENI&WT :
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F ARMTFIT

Salaries, allowances and benefits e R EYEF

in kind 545 700
Pension scheme contributions IRRET B X 136 182
681 882

The number of non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell
within the following bands is as follows:

N TS ERMIFES MIF
EIBTRABZ&ZSHEE AR
LI

Number of employees

EBEAH™Y
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
Nil - RMB817,000 Tz AR¥817,0007T
(equivalent to HK$1,000,000) (#5& 51,000,000/ 7T) 5 5

During the year, no emolument was paid by the
Group to the non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss
of office.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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14.

15.

16.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

DIVIDEND

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for each of the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020.

A MBERRWE

BE_FT_—F1T-_A=+—HIFE

14. B2

EETEBNEBEE TS -—F k=
T-TF+ - A=+—HIFESF
ZATAAIRR B o

LOSS PER SHARE 15. BIREE
Basic loss per share BREXEIE
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on BREXNEBEDBRBAAGEE AR
the loss attributable to owners of the Company of 1 E 1B %) A R #40,390,000T (=F
approximately RMB40,390,000 (2020: RMB27,911,000) —ZTHF: AR®27,911,0007T) & F
and 308,860,000 (2020: 308,860,000) shares in issue A B E 1T 19 308,860,0000% ( ==
during the year. — T4 :308,860,0000% ) 5+ & »
Diluted loss per share BREEEFE
No diluted loss per share is presented as there were no Tﬁiﬂ%ﬂi%%%)ﬁﬂ% TEREE
diluted potential ordinary shares in issue during the years T—FRIFEZEFTAZ ‘1'—
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. EI Jtﬁthlﬂﬁ ERTEEEEE
% o
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. WX -BERRE
Furniture
Leasehold Plant and and Motor
Buildings improvements  machinery fixtures vehicles Total
B RENEEE HEREE HGURKE RE @it
RIMB'000 RIMB'000 RIMB 000 RIMB 000 RIMB 000 RIMB'000
ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREfT  ARETR
cost KK
At 1 January 2021 R=%--%-A-H 149,528 34 47,622 1,934 408 199,526
Additions AE - - 9 - - 9
Disposals HE - - (341) - - (341)
At 31 December 2021 NZEC-FTZAZT-H 0 149,528 34 47,290 1934 408 199,194
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 3T ERJIE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2021 R-%--%-A-H 28,862 34 44,046 1,851 408 75,201
Depreciation for the year EniE 3,646 - 1243 )] - 4,911
Impairment loss recognised for the  £RERZFESE
year 5211 - - - - 5211
Eliminated on disposals HEREE - - (341) - - (341)
At 31 December 2021 R-B--F+-A=1-H 31,719 34 44,948 1873 408 84,982
CARRYING AMOUNT KEE
At 31 December 2021 RZZ--F+ZA=+-H 111,809 - 2,342 61 - 114,212

mﬁﬁiﬁwtasmwﬁmm 1 21
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

16. PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

#

F-F—

—F+-A=+—HILFE

16. W% BERZRE (E)

(continued)
Furniture
Leasehold Plant and and Motor
Buildings  improvements machinery fixtures vehicles Total
BT HMENEEE RRREE  GLREE e B3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RIMB'000 RIMB'000 RIMB'000 RIMB 000
AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETR
CosT A
At 1 January 2020 RZE-2F-F-H 126,85 3 47333 1917 408 176,548
Additions NE 22,672 - 289 17 - 22978
At 31 December 2020 R-E-BE+-A=1-H 149,528 34 47622 1,934 408 199,526
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ Z3H47E
At 1 January 2020 N-E2-FE-F-§ 25,369 29 41,013 1,829 408 68,648
Depreciation for the year EniE 3493 5 3,033 2 - 6,553
At 31 December 2020 R-E-BE+-A=1-H 28,862 34 44,046 1,851 408 75,201
CARRYING AMOUNT REE
At 31 December 2020 W-E-RE+-A=1-H 120,666 - 3,576 83 - 124,325

The buildings are situated on land in the PRC under
remaining lease term of 33.5 years (2020: 34.5 years).

As at 31 December 2021, certain plant and machinery
and buildings with the carrying amount of approximately
RMB Nil (2020: RMB17,000) and RMB44,317,000 (2020:
RMB45,726,000) respectively were pledged to a bank to
secure bank borrowing granted to the Group (note 28).

As at 31 December 2021, certain plant and machinery
and motor vehicles with the carrying amounts of
approximately RMB365,000 (2020: RMB484,000) and
RMB Nil (2020: RMB Nil) respectively were pledged to
secure the amount due to a shareholder (note 27).

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2021

BFEMIAREZ L FpHE
HIA335F (ZE-FF :345%F) -

R—ZE—_—F+=_A=+—8"
FHEIHINOARBKZ T (ZZ =
TE:ARME17,000T) AR
44,317,000 (ZE - F: )\Eﬂ%
45,726,00070) 2 H= T B M # 25

MEFEERT— F%EHLM/EZ%&%
REERITEEZER (MIFE28) °

RN_E-_—F+-_A=+—H0 KA
E5 R4 AR #E365,00000 (—F —
T4 ARHA484,0007T) R ARBEE
T (ZEZZF  ARBZT)2ET
R R Es AR BB E R AERRE
IR FRIB 2 | (M5E27) ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

16. PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

In view of the continuous operating losses sustained by
the Group, management of the Company conducted
impairment assessments on the Group’s property, plant
and equipment and land use right (right-of-use assets,
note 17) with reference to valuations of the assets as
valued by an external valuer not connected with the
Group. Having reviewed the bases and assumptions
adopted for the valuation, management considered it
appropriate that (a) impairment loss is not required to be
made for the land use right as the fair value less cost of
disposal of the land use right is estimated to be above its
carrying amount; and (b) impairment loss amounted to
approximately RMB5,211,000 (2020: Nil) was recognised
for the year on the property, plant and equipment, based
on their estimated replacement cost.

A MBERRWE

BE-_FT-——F+_A=1+—HIFE

16. W% BERZRE (E)

EAREEFELEEE ARRE
BE2ZHAEEEBFENINIE
B EENHESASENYE -
BEREER T ERE (FRES
- BEE17) TR E R o R
HMEMRANEERBRSR BEER
BB AR T E AR IR EE
B ERITHERAEsATFEREL
EXAGEEEREREE: &b)F
NERBEWE BEEREGETE
ERNAREERBRERBENARE
5211000 (ZEZFF:\)BE

e

WE R AL B RO ERA T
—E-—FEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %=

—F+-A=+—HILFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. EREEE
Land use
right
b 5 AR AE
RMB'000
AREFTT
COST BN
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, RZEZEF—H—AH-
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 —E2-EF+-_HA=+—H"
T —F—-HA—-BK
—E-_—%+-_A=+—H 10,534
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ESE
At 1 January 2020 W_E-_TF—-—H—H 293
Depreciation provided for the year FAFHRITE 293
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 R-_E-_FEF+-_A=1+—HBK
R—ZE-_—F—H—H 586
Depreciation provided for the year FAFTRITE
290
At 31 December 2021 R-_EBE_—F+_A=+—H 876
CARRYING AMOUNT BREE
At 31 December 2021 R-_EBE_—F+_A=+—H 9,658

At 31 December 2020

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group’s land use
right represents the leasehold land with the remaining
lease period of 33.5 years (2020: 34.5 years) and located
at No. 7, Dianzi Street, Demonstration Zone, Shanxi, the
PRC. Such land use right was pledged to a bank to secure
bank borrowings granted to the Group (note 28).

The carrying amount of the land use right is amortised on
the straight-line basis over the remaining lease period.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2021

RZBE-EF+_-_A=+—H

RZFE-—FK

9,948

—E-FF+A
=+—H AEEHTHEREAN
RAERLARBRES FH/IFNEE
T THEEHA3SF(ZE =
TF :34.5%F) c izt FAED AR

T—RRT ERRKEER ZRTT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_-_FT_-_—F+-_H=1+—HIFE

18. SUBSIDIARIES 18. M B A A
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as RABRBERRZEEWB R RFF
follows: BT
Percentage
of equity
interests
attributable
directly to
the Company
Place of at 31 December
incorporation/ Registered/ 2021 and
registration paid up 31 December
Company name and operations capital 2020  Principal activities
R-B=-%
tZA=t-Bk
g i 22
TZA=t-H
HEMAL/ HMRE/  RAFEEREN
NAER BRREEE BREX RERALE TEER
Shanxi Changcheng Huiging Environmental PRC RMB1,000,000/ 55%  Wholesale of household
Technology Company Limited* RMB200,000¢ water purifiers
("Changcheng Huiging")
WERREERRBEBRAR ([RAEE]) TE AR 1,000,000,/ FRRKERE
AR%200,0007
Taiyuan Changcheng Weiguang Weitong PRC RMB15,000,000/ 100%  Design, research,
Electronics Company Limited* RMBNil" development,
("Changcheng Weitong”) manufacture and sales
of optoelectronic and
chemical glass products
KREAMANAEFHAERAT M AR 15,000,000,/ it WA RE HER
(TRAE]) ARBZTL" HEXBRICEREE
i
Taiyuan Changcheng Feibo Optoelectronic PRC RMB20,000,000/ 100%  Design, research,
Technology Company Limited* RMBNil" development,
("Changcheng Feibo") manufacture and sales
of fiber optics products
and water purifiers
ARREMEFEBRERRERAT M AR 20,000,000/ it BRRE RER
([RAERE]) ARBZTL" HEXGERRFKE
Shanxi Shansite Optoelectronics PRC RMBS5,000,000/ 100%  Sales of optoelectronic
Technology Co., Limited* RMBNil® and fiber optics
("Shansite”) products
WHERBEAEMEERRR (TRR%E]) M AR 5,000,000,/ HEXERAHER
AREZETe

WE R AL B RO ERA T
—E-—FEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-FT-——#F+-_HA=+—HILFZE

18. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 18. B A= (&)

* The English names are for identification only.

# The registered capital of Changcheng Huiging
is RMB1,000,000, of which RMB110,000 and
RMB90,000 has been contributed by the Group and
the non-controlling shareholder respectively up to 31
December 2021 and 2020.

Changcheng Weitong and Changcheng Feibo were
established in the PRC with limited liability on 21
June 2016. The registered capital of Changcheng
Weitong and Changcheng Feibo is RMB15,000,000 and
RMB20,000,000 respectively and no registered capital
was contributed by the Group up to 31 December 2021
and 2020. Changcheng Weitong and Changcheng Feibo
have not yet started operation for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

e Shansite was established in the PRC with limited liability
on 5 February 2018. The registered capital of Shansite is
RMB5,000,000 and no registered capital was contributed
by the Group up to 31 December 2021 and 2020.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of both years.

The Group had no subsidiary which has material
non-controlling interests for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020, accordingly financial
information regarding the non-controlling interests is not
presented in the consolidated financial statements.

* o RNAREHRBR -

# ERESZEZMERARBARKE
1,000,0007T - £+ AR #110,000
TR ARE,000TREE —-F

Z—FRZEZEF+ZA=1—
HZRE DR AAEBE R —AIEE
% A% R 481+t o

" EEMBLEERFER 2T —XRF
ANAZtT—BEFRBERZIAEERA
Ale REMBRERMIEFHEME
A5 Rl A AR E15,000,0007T & A
R #20,000,0007C * & AN & E A #
BT FRZEZZTF+=A
S+ —RUTEANFMER &
MBREBIFFEREBEE S =—F
FZZEZEF+ZRA=+—HLF
EmERBEEER-

Bl S BB R AR B EMEMM
&R A ANRE5,000,0000T MEE
ZE—FRZEZTF+ A
—t+—HBHAEETEHSEME
z]go

R EFER HENE QR EHITE
&5 &

HE_T-_—FRk_T-FTF+=H
=t+—HLEFE AEEVEAEEX
IR B AR tE IS
I 2 M B IS BRI R R ARG BT IS 3R
KE5 -

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REE QTR 2 RER
2021 2020
—E=-—F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARMFT ARETT

Unlisted investments in the PRC RPE 2 IEETMKRE
Share of net assets F’Efﬁﬁﬁkﬂﬁ
Due from associates g RN ]
Less: Impairment loss recognised B EERREEE

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2021

2,564 2,564
1,373 1,281
3,937 3,845
(3,937) (3,845)




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_-_FT_-_—F+-_H=1+—HIFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19. RERE DT 2R (52)
Particulars of the associates at the end of the reporting R ERR B ERRIFBUOT:

period are as follows:

Percentage of
equity interests

attributable

directly to

the Company

at 31 December

Place of Registered/ 2021 and
incorporation/ paid up 31 December

Company name registration capital 2020  Principal activities

R-B=-%

tZA=t-Bk

g i 22

TZA=t-A

ML/ EMBRE/  AAFEEREN

NAER Brnd BREX RERAL TEER

Shanxi Huayuan Transport Optical Technology PRC RMB11,000,000/ 36.36%  Development of fiber optic
and Engineering Company Limited* RMB4,000,000 for intelligent transport
("Huayuan Transport”) system

WRERZAXERTIRERAT M AR#11,000,0007T,/ RAEERIAELES
([EEZA]) AR 4,000,000 2R

Taiyuan Changcheng Luojiguang Optical PRC RMB2,000,000/ 35.00%  Manufacturing,
Technology Company Limited* RMB700,000¢ processing, research
("Changcheng Luojiguang”) and development and

sales of electronic
components and
optical
subcomponents

AREAELRERRARAA mE AR #2,000,0007,/ BT RABLENN
([RABER]) AEH700,0007* EE T B R

&

Taiyuan Weiguang Feifan Education PRC RMB100,000/ 49.00%  Education information
Management Consultant Company Limited* RMBNIL" consultation,
("Weiguang Feifan”) organizing

cultural and artistic
exchange activities,
housing lease

AREXFNHEERLNERAT M AR 100,000,/ HEEMEH BEX
([#XFEA]) ARBZT" REMZRED FE

HE

mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁgggﬁggg 1 27
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e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-FT-——#F+-_HA=+—HILFZE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

* The English names are for identification only.

# The registered capital of Changcheng Luojiguang is
RMB2,000,000 of which RMB700,000 was contributed by
the Group up to 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Weiguang Feifan was established in the PRC with limited
liability on 8 November 2017. The registered capital
of Weiguang Feifan is RMB100,000 and no registered
capital was contributed by the Group up to 31 December
2021 and 2020. Accordingly, the Group is obligated to
make capital contribution to this associate amounted to
RMB49,000 (2020: RMB49,000) when required.

The amounts due from associates are unsecured,
interest-free and not repayable within one year.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group recognised
impairment losses of approximately RMB3,937,000
(2020: RMB3,845,000) in respect of the interests in the
associates mainly due to uncertainties surrounding the
industry in which the associate operates.

The associates are accounted for using the equity method
in these consolidated financial statements and the
associates are not considered to be individually material
to the Group.

The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s
share of the amounts of all individually immaterial
associates that are accounted for using the equity
method.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2021

19. REEE RN T) 2% ()

* o RNAREHRBR -

# RHBEEL2AMERNRBARKE
2,000,0007T - HF A K #700,000
TASEBEREBEE T -—F k=
T F+A=+—HA&ES-

" BRI AR -E—+F+— A
NBRAFPBEKLZERRAR MK
JERZEME LR B ARK100,000
T RAEEREBEEZSZ—FK
ZEZTF+ZRA=1+—HIEH
NEMELA Bl AEBRFE
BRAEEFRAEEAGTELRHEA
R#49,000t (ZZE =T F : ARK
49,0007T) °

FEUCHE 2 N BIFADEER  RERK
BER—FRNEE-

RZE-_—F+=-_A=+—H &%
EphEE N A 2 EaERBEEIRL
AR#3,937,000c (ZE=-FF: A
R #3,845,0007T) ' F ZHAZE &
RAIFIREZITEBEZNTHBPAZ
Fr gk o

BE QR AEREAR L ERA MBS
BERAANR BB ZE QBT HAESE
Pl AREEmMEBEKN-

TRIRAEBOEFBER TS XL
PERNBEAFNEE MEBES
B ESAANIR



19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE-_FT-——F+_A=1+—HIFE

19. REEERNB) 2R (4F)

2021 2020
—Eg=-F —E-ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARKFT
At 31 December R+=ZBA=+-—H

Carrying amounts of interests EREEE - -

Year ended 31 December BE+-A=+t—HLEFE
Loss from continuing operations BECLEER - 42
Other comprehensive loss Hith 2 HEEE - -
Total comprehensive loss FHEBER - 42

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share
of results of the associate, Huayuan Transport, because
the share of losses of the associate exceeded the Group's
interest in the associate. As at 31 December 2021, the
cumulatively unrecognised share of losses of the associate
is approximately RMB1,918,000 (2020: RMB1,918,000).

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share
of results of the associate, Changcheng Luojiguang,
because the share of losses of the associate exceeded
the Group’s interest in the associate. As at 31 December
2021, the cumulatively unrecognised share of losses
of the associate is approximately RMB6,000 (2020:

AR ZBENREERBAEER
REE N TR e A
EEERIEERDZBERNE 2%
E-m—_T-_—4F+-_A=+—8"
RETARERN DB E R REBLOA
R#¥1918,000 (ZE_ZTF: AR
#1,918,0007T) °

HROMBERRNEBEBLASE

B A RS AREE L
RREDEBE R VRAMEN 2 %
BoR=—T-—%F+-A=+-8"

B R BERO DB E QR EIEY
AR®6,000t (ZE-FF: AR

RMB2,000). 2,0007T)
INVENTORIES 20. 78
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBFT
Raw materials =R 1,136 753
Work in progress & m 4,084 6,844
Finished goods RIRK Th 5,235 5,099
10,455 12,696
mﬁﬁiﬁiﬁktﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ

—E——
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e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

#

B E - —fF+ /A= —HILFE

Bills receivable generally have credit terms of one year
from date of issue. No bills receivable as at 31 December
2021 are past due.

As referred to note 28, repayments of certain of the
borrowings of the Group are guaranteed by the proceeds
from the Group's trade receivables.

An aging analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES . EWESRRERE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBF T
Trade receivables JEUE 5 BRI 19,987 28,137
Bills receivable JE Ut 2= % 313 -
Less: impairment of trade receivables B EINE B R FURE (11,814) (6,710)
8,486 21,427

e TFE’JFEHHL%?%E%HEI

Rt — -

=t—8" $E%ﬁ%ﬂ&?%%§?@,ﬁﬂ °

AR E28P At - 15

BEANEBOETE

ENUAREEEWE SRR ZA1SRIA

TEYELR °

RBERR BWE SRS

eSS

FERE ARG 2 Rl 1 40

date and net of provisions, is as follows: T
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt ARMF T
0 to 90 days 0%290H 3,780 20,064
91 to 180 days 91H £180H 816 1,265
181 to 365 days 181HZ365H 3,890 98
8,486 21,427

The trading terms with customers are largely on credit.
The credit period is generally 90 days (2020: 90 days).
The Group maintains strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has credit control policy in place to
minimise its credit risk. The Group has significant
concentration of credit risk arising from its ordinary
course of business due to its relatively small customer
bases. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by
management. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2021

RTEPZEZBRAITBERHBRES
X FEEH KRB (ZZE_F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(continued)

The movements in impairment of trade receivables are as
follows:

A MBERRWE

E_E_—F_H=1—HIFE

. BRESRIAREE (&)

R E B R REZSHINT

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETHF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥FT ARETT

At 1 January m—H—H 6,710 4,589
Impairment losses recognised EERRERERE 5,104 2,121
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 11,814 6,710

Impairment of trade receivables was made against
individually impaired trade receivables of approximately
RMB11,814,000 (2020: RMB6,710,000). The individually
impaired trade receivables relate to customers that
were in financial difficulties and only a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances.

As at 31 December, 2021, the Group’s carrying
amount of trade receivables is RMB8,173,000 (net of
allowance for credit losses of RMB11,814,000) (2020:
RMB21,427,000 (net of allowance for credit losses
of RMB6,710,000)), which includes receivables of
RMB4,706,000 (2020: RMB1,363,000) that were past
due as at that date, but no additional impairment was
made as the management considers that those debtors
continuously paid their debts and their financial position
were not impaired.

The Group applies the simplified approach under HKFRS
9 to provide for expected credit losses using the lifetime
expected loss provision for all trade receivables. To
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due. The expected credit losses also
incorporate forward looking information.

HERBMEZ EWE SERE TR
WE SERFRBEL ARE11,814,000
T(ZZEZZEF: AK%e6,710,000
TT) o EERIREZ EWE SRR
MENKR$EZRFAER EEZE
JE LS AR R 1E AT B o Ui [ o 7N &% [ 3 A
MZEERF A E T RS EIRE
MR EAMEE-

R-ZZE-_—F+=-A=+—0 4%
EREWESERZEEAEAARYE
8,173,000T (MR EEEBEREBEAR
#11,814,0007T) (ZE=_ZF: AR
#21,427,0007T) (HBR{EEEIEEE
AR #6,710,00000) " EFBEAR
4,706,000 (2 -2 F: AR
1,363,00070) RsZ HE w8 - (H & 12
ERAZEEFAFBEEEEHNE
RIS AR I AR E - B R BER
SRR EEINAIE -

AREBEAE AV HRE LRI ENR
IO S TDEBL AT B B E 5 MR E
REMERRERRTEBREES
E%‘EF HREMEEER BRES

RERBEAZEERRFEEIKE S
EI%("*E %ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ’j Al BE
TEEFL o

m&ﬁﬁta&ﬁg?ﬁmm 1 31
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e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE—_ZT-—F+_A=+—HIFEE

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 2. EWESRARREE (&)

(continued)

Over Over Over Over one
Not ~ 3months  6months  9months  year past
past due past due past due past due due Total
k] L] k]
ABH  SM3BA SMeEA  SMER AEIENL it
At 31 December 2021 R-B--E+ZB=t-H
Weighted average expected lossrate SN EHEEERTE 2 MET
per ECL assessment HRAERE 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 70.33% 100%
Receivable amount (RMB'000) ThEEE (ARETT) 4,439 3,252 2,135 5916 4,45 19,987
Loss allowance per ECLassessment SN EHEEEHE BiERE
(RMB'000) (AREFTT) - - - (4,161) (4,245) (8,406)
4,439 3,252 2,135 1,755 - 11,581
Additional loss allowance (RMB'000)  EHMEEEE (\EETT)
(notes a and ) (HsFakb) (972) (831) (1,605) - - (3,408)
3,467 240 530 1755 - 8173
At 31 December 2020 RZB_ZETZA=T-H
Weighted average expected loss rate SR BHEEEEL
per ECL assessment METHREERX 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100% 100%
Receivable amount (RMB'000) ThEeE (ARETT) 20,064 1,265 % 1,407 5,303 28,137
Loss allowance per ECLassessment ~ BAEHEEESL
(RMB'000) BiEkE (\RETT) - - - (1,407) (5303) (6,710)
20,064 1,265 % - - N4

Notes: fif & -

(@) At 31 December 2021, the Group had trade receivable @ WRZE_—F+-_A=+—H'XK
from a Russian customer amounted to approximately EEERN—ZHBENEEZEW
RMB2,492,000 which remained outstanding up to ZEH5BERHANREE2,492,0000 H
the date of approval of these consolidated financial REEZEHEZSHREMBERE A
statements. Management of the Company is of the MEAZF - AATERERE AR
view that it is highly uncertain for the recoverability of REMES TR OTHMNEEFHR
this receivable as a result of the recent military conflicts WEZERKESERFESET
between Russia and Ukraine; accordingly, loss allowance T E M - B Ik B F R B RZ B U R
amounted to RMB2,492,000 was recognised on the TEfE A E B HE AR 2,492,000
receivable for the year. gL °

(b)  Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a debtor by MBEHKR®E —ZEBEARDAR

made return of goods that were sold by the Group during
the current year amounted to approximately RMB916,000
and loss allowance on the receivable from this debtor
amounted to RMB916,000 was recognised for the year.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.

Annual Report 2021

EERAFEHENEMSELOA
R¥916,0007T ' NFREERRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

A MBERRWE

BE_FT_—F1T-_A=+—HIFE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22. AR -ReERHEMERRE
RECEIVABLES
2021 2020
—E-—F —EFTF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥FT ARKFT
Prepayments AT IE 1,940 1,974
Deposits and other receivables 12 & NOE e WK IR 8,355 2,166
10,295 4,140
Less: Impairment loss recognised (note) & : B HERIBEE B (HfaE) (5,000)
5,295 4,140
Note: Bt at -
Included in other receivables is receivable from a loan lender Hihrlh R BEEEEKETRATEBEBAERE

amounted to RMBS5,000,000 which was previously set off
against the bank and other borrowings (note 28). Having
considered the relevant information, management is of the
view that it is more appropriate to reclassify this receivable
of RMB5,000,000 to other receivables. As this receivable
remained outstanding for a period of over 2 years, management
considered that the recovery of the receivable is highly
uncertain and impairment loss on this receivable amounted to
RMB5,000,000 (2020: Nil) was recognized in profit or loss in
respect of current year.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

ﬂ%ooooooﬁ B#Za LR EIRTT
MEAMEEKE (H:E28) &= EMH
Eriz BEERABZERFTBARE
5 ooo LO00TTEN B EHMBEWKIBE A

cHNZERF BB E2FREE
%I@%@%H&@%ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁﬁ&%}%ﬁ
WEM - B ZESRGRERRAEABE AR
5,000,000 (ZEZZF : &) DR AF
ER

23. e RBEEEER

2021 2020

—EC-—F —E-TF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TF T AREF T

Bank balances and cash RITEEHEIRE 399 1,216

At the end of the reporting period, the bank balances
and cash of the Group are mainly denominated in RMB.

RBEMR AEEZRITEHRER
SIBUARBREM-

mﬁﬁiﬁwtasmwﬁmm 1 33
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-FT-——#F+-_HA=+—HILFZE

23.

24,

25.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(continued)

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies.
Under the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign
currencies through banks that are authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

TRADE PAYABLES

An aging analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice
date, is as follows:

23.

24,

ReRkREeEEERRB (&)

ARBIFFAIERABRINENE
B REBEHDBENINEE DR K&
HEAEEBEERBEETINERTZ
RITAARE L BRINE -

RIRTZRESBRBRTE BRITER
MR L7 B A R ERER A B - SRITAEER

BB R AT RT3 448 4030 8%
Z3R7T
BN E SRR

ENESEFRERZAHZEEDY
T

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt ARMFIT
0 to 90 days 0Z290H 1,280 532
91 to 180 days 91H £180H 640 887
181 to 365 days 181H £365H 1,052 2,148
Over 365 days B #E365H 5,666 5,391
8,638 8,958

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. FEStRIE R H A FE 4 mKIE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBF T

Accrued construction cost and salaries,  JE=t T2 Ak 24N 2 37 B 12

and other payables H fth & < 508 95,224 90,080
Other accrued expenses Hih st 8,767 8,248
Legal claims payable (note) FERERRE (MaE) 5,124 -
Others Hith 1,259 949
110,374 99,277

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2021
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26.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_FT_—F1T-_A=+—HIFE

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. Bt RERHEMWEMNKIE
(continued) (&)

Note: Bt e

During the year, the Group received certain judgements issued A 7R ER BB AP B K B B ER B L e

by PRC courts over legal claims lodged by purchase suppliers,
construction contractors and former employees of the Group
in respect of debts that the Group owed these parties. Having

B EERERRAKERNEERAEE
BRZEATHEBRLAERREFD
B T HR - R B BDERB 1) #RIK -

reviewed the PRC courts’ judgements, management of the
Company considered it appropriate to recognize loss on legal
claims amounted to approximately RMB5,124,000 (2020:
Nil), which represents additional payables to the claimants as
calculated to be the excess of the amounts of payables judged
over the payables and accrued expenses which were accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
previous years.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

2 AEANREA
Iﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬂﬁifﬁz,ﬁé
AR Z BN RIA R ERT AT E -

26. ENEE

ARBEEER 7%1':&‘;@%&%1%‘}%%%%7/\
EM51240007E(_7_7¢ =B
XA ;;zﬁﬁ#uaemm

R EHEK

2021 2020
—E- - —T-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARKFT
Advance payments received from HIEEE R @ & F I ER
customers for sales of goods Z AR T 5,522 5,480
Year ended 31 December BE+-A=+t—HLHFE
Revenue recognised in the year that FYFAEHBELR
was included in contract liabilities at FRER W S
beginning of year - 666
Significant changes in contract REFEEGHEBENERED
liabilities during the year
Advance payments received during the year 4 A Yt B 2 T8 1+ 3018 682 976
Transfer of contract liabilities to revenue #E&E & X B BEE K (648) (666)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer products or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration from the customer.

i Eﬁiﬁﬁﬁktéﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ

BHREREASECDKEFLHEM
AP EEEmIRFEHES -

—E——
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-FT-——#F+-_HA=+—HILFZE

27. AMOUNTS DUE TO SHAREHOLDERS 27. BHREREMKIE
Analyses of the amounts due to shareholders are as FER IR KB -
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARKFIT
Amounts due to shareholders JE < % 3R Fk 0B
— secured by the Group’s plant and —UREE 7 BB KR #eE &
machinery and motor vehicles (note 16) ABEEERR (Kat16) 1,350 1,300
— unsecured — fE K 1 21,316 18,295
22,666 19,595
Amounts due to shareholders JE A~ % B 3R IR
— interest chargeable at 4.35% per annum — R & F4.35%F K5 B 22,666 19,172
— interest free —% 8 - 423
22,666 19,595
Amounts due to shareholders repayable (& i & 1~ I 38 508
— within one year ——F R 20,284 19,595
- in the second year —E 4 2,382 -
22,666 19,595
Analysed for reporting purposes: HEREMDFOT
Classified in DEE
— current liabilities - REams 20,284 19,595
— non-current liabilities —JERBEaE 2,382 -
22,666 19,595
Note: B et -

During the current year, a shareholder of the Company made
advances amounted to approximately RMB2,240,000 to the
Group. The advances are unsecured and carry interest at 4.35%
per annum and are repayable within two years. The fair value
of the advances at the time of their drawdown was estimated
to be RMB2,236,000, using the effective interest rate of 4.35%
per annum. The excess of the principal amounts of the loans
over their fair value at the dates of drawdown, amounted to
RMB4,000 (note 32), was dealt with in equity and was included in
other reserve of the Group.

1 36 Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2021

RAFE  AQNR—BREERAANEEE
H 24 AR EE2,240,0007T © iZ Z 250 B
EIER BIRFFI R4 35% B N BRW
FREE - ZEBRR I 2 A FER
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F435% ZEERZASEBEENST
BAHZ A FESIEARE4,0005T (KT
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

28. BRITRHEMEE

BE_FT_—F1T-_A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—EB-—-F —E-ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREETF T
Bank borrowing WITEE 10,650 10,900
Other borrowings (note) HiEE (FaF) 83,058 79,187
93,708 90,087
An analysis of the repayments of the borrowings is as HEEEEIMWOT
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETF T
Borrowings repayable: EEREE
On demand or within one year ?ﬁgi?}zﬁ/\\—ilﬁ 93,708 81,320
In the second year E-FRN - 7,870
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-EERTF
(EEMEBEREEN) - 960
93,708 90,087
Less: Amount due for settlement within B RNRMEARNEE 2
12 months (shown under current JETFRIE (R E)
liabilities) BEBETYTR) (93,708) (81,320)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 21218 B 18 4 & 2~ FE (3018 - 8,767

Note: Included in other borrowings are loans made to the Group
by a director of the Company, Mr. Yuan Guoliang, and
the holding company of a substantial shareholder of the
Company amounted to RMB309,000 (2020: RMB298,000)
and RMB7,905,000 (2020: RMB10,543,000) respectively.
The loans from a director are unsecured, carry interest
at 4.35% per annum and are repayable on demand.
The loans from the holding company of the substantial
shareholder are unsecured, carry interest at 12% per
annum and are repayable on demand. Repayment of
the loans from the holding company to the extent of
approximately RMB2,800,000 (2020: RMB4,927,000)
is guaranteed by the proceeds from the Group's trade
receivables.

it

EMEEBREARAEERER
%$&$’Aﬂ BEEBRRZE

RABEAECERBRNASEEED
2% AR 309,000 (Z & =
TH AR#298,0007T) M AREE
7,905,000 (ZZE—FF: AR
#10,543,0007) - RBEEFZE
RAEE R F R F4.35%5 2
&?§K$1§§°K§ %\Ixﬂﬁi
ZERARZERAERRT IZ
FRE12%TERIZERKEE B
BEBRARIZZEEROARE
2,800,000 (ZE=_FF: AR
4,927,0007T) A AN EE ERE SR
K2 RS SRIBVEEIR o

WA RBHKEMROBRD A
SR -FFR
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BE—

T —Ff A=t —HILEE

— =

28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(continued)

Note: (continued)

During the current year, substantially all of these other
borrowings were not repaid in accordance with the
relevant loan agreements. Accordingly, these borrowings
with the aggregate outstanding balances of approximately
RMB92,908,000 (2020: RMB81,320,000) are included in
current liabilities. The remaining other borrowings with
the outstanding balance of RMB800,000 are repayable
within one year after the end of the reporting period and
are also included in current liabilities.

The guarantees and securities given for the bank and
other borrowings at the end of each reporting period are

as follows:

28. |RITRHEMBE (&)

GEE

(%)

RAFE ZEHEMEBELT 2
ABRIBHEEERBEEE ALt
ZEREERBBENAARE
92,908,000 (ZZE=—TF: AR
#81,320,0007T) W& E 5T AL &)
BE-BTAEELEBAARE
800,0007T A H & & 78 70 3k & 55
KeE—FANEE BT ATRHAE

f&e

REMEPRBRTLEMEERM

Secured bank and other borrowings (note) BiKIFIETIT

Unsecured other borrowings

ZHERIENR
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%F ARETFT
NMEMES (H:T) 15,012 17,300
EERBEMEER 78,696 72,787
93,708 90,087
Bt SRIT R EMEERGIKEAE B

Note: These bank and other borrowings are secured by (i) the

pledge of the Group’s right-of-use asset located at No.7,
Dianzi Street, Demonstration Zone, Shanxi, the PRC (note
17) and certain buildings, and plant and machinery (note
16); and (ii) guarantee given by a shareholder of the

Company.

The bank and other borrowings are further analysed as

RABRLALE RERETHLRS
FREEE (WM ERETETF
VAR B 55 Re i g (FiisE16) ¢ R (i A
NE—BRRIB M EREER -

follows:

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥Fr ARMTFIT

Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE
Interest bearing (note) S8 (M) 93,656 82,803
Non-interest bearing g8 52 7,284
93,708 90,087

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.

Annual Report 2021




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(continued)

Note: Included in interest bearing borrowings are bank
borrowings amounted to RMB10,650,000 (2020:
RMB10,900,000) which carried interests at bank lending
rate plus a specific margin.

Interest bearing other borrowings amounted to
RMB83,006,000 (2020: RMB71,903,000) at 31 December
2021, of which borrowings with the outstanding
balances of RMB79,033,000 (2020: RMB68,308,000) and
RMB2,540,000 (2020: RMB2,180,000) at that date carried
interests at 12% (2020: 12%) per annum and 30% (2020:
30%) per annum respectively.

The effective interest rates applied to the interest bearing
other borrowings at 31 December 2021 ranged from 2%
to 30% per annum (2020: 2% to 30% per annum).

During the prior year ended 31 December 2020, other
borrowings amounted to RMB5,327,000 was obtained
by the Group. The fair value of these borrowings at their
drawdown was estimated to be RMB5,279,000, using
the effective interest rate ranged from 12% to 24%
per annum. The excess of the principal amounts of the
other borrowings over their fair value at the dates of
drawdown, amounted to RMB422,000, was recognised
as other income (note 9).

For the prior year ended 31 December 2020, the
lenders of certain borrowings granted waivers to collect
the interest on the borrowings for that year. In this
connection, the interest payable for the prior year on the
borrowings amounted to RMB677,000 was waived by the
borrowers and, accordingly, credited to the finance costs
(note 10).

A MBERRWE

BE_FT_—F1T-_A=+—HIFE

28. RITRHEMBE (&)

Kzt - T EEBEHRBERRITERFE N
%E%%ﬁﬁ 8 AR #10,650,0007C
—E-ZTF: AR%10,900,000

L) ZRITEE-

WNZZE-Z—F+=-A=+—H
HAEHEMEESEAARKE
83,006,000 (ZZE =T F: AR
#71,903,0007) ' B AREEL
2 AR #79,033,000L (ZE-F
F: AR %68,308,0007T) M AR
#2,540,000L (ZZE =T F: AR
#2,180,0007T ) 5% B 2 Bl & F
2% (ZZEZZFF:12% ) &30%
(ZZE-ZTF:30%) 2F KT8

RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H" &
BEMEEMEAZERAMENT
HFE2%E30% (ZE_FF : HF
2%ZE30% ) °

HE_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—H1t
EE ZKEIEHX HiEEARE
5,327,0007T ' Z SEERNH R 2
NRFEFEANTEF12%E24% 2 E
BRF =G5 A AREES,279,0007T « &
EERSEBHENTBRAH A
FEEH D FEAREA22,0007T B ##
RAEEMWA (M) -

HE-_Z-_ZTZF+-_A=+—8Lt
EF ETEREZERAC RBRIKER
MﬁFEK&EFZﬂ S o gtk m

CEFREERNZAEARE
6WO%EEEF%A%H AL B H#H
B AR (HiE10) -

mﬁﬁiﬁwtasmwﬁmm 1 39
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29. DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS 29. EHFEBRY
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARMFT ARETT

Government grants received BT & B
At 1 January n—A—H 48,302 47,572
Grants received during the year FANEWED - 730
At 31 December Rt+t—_HA=+—H 48,302 48,302
Released to profit or loss B=Exn
At 1 January n—A—H 23,980 20,417
Recognised in profit or loss in respect RAFEBRANER
of the year 2,305 3,563
At 31 December R+—_A=+—8H 26,285 23,980
Carrying amount FREE
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 22,017 24,322
Analysed for reporting purposes: MEREMDTWOT :
Classified in DEZE
— current liabilities —mEAE 2,250 2,305
— non-current liabilities —ERBHEE 19,767 22,017
22,017 24,322
The Group received government grants for the Group’s AEERAEE 2 ERAEREAR
facilities for development and research of its products, RAXNEBEZEERBESBRNTE
and for enhancing the Group’s production facilities. The Bh o ZEFIEN BB EE 2 LAl
amounts are deferred and amortised over the estimated REHRNET & #E-

useful lives of the respective assets.

1 40 Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

30. SHARE CAPITAL

BE-_FT-——F+_A=1+—HIFE

30. g A&

Authorised, issued and fully paid:
198,860,000 (2020: 198,860,000)
domestic share of RMB0.10 each

110,000,000 (2020: 110,000,000) H
share of RMB0.10 each

There were no changes in the Company’s share capital
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31

December 2020.

Except for the currency in which dividends are paid and
the restrictions as to whether the shareholders can be the

EEBEIT R
198,860,000f% (= ZE =&
£ :198,860,000/% )
FREEAREO10T
ZNERK

110,000,000f% (ZZE =&
£ :110,000,0004% )
EREEARO10T
2 Hi%

2021 2020
—E-—-F —E-ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFRT AREFT
19,886 19,886
11,000 11,000
30,886 30,886

REZ-_ZE-_—F+=-_A=+—HK
—ECEF+ AT BLEFE"

AR R AN B o

PRC investors or foreign investors, domestic shares and H G

shares rank pari passu with each other.

31. RESERVES
Group

(a) Capital surplus

31.

B SASA R B A KR BR 2 & A A
RPREIREELINERE E RS
N E B HBLR 1t = 8 R i o

(G

#5EH

(a)

The capital surplus of the Group represents the
excess of the issue price over the nominal value of
the Company’s shares issued at a premium.

BX R
AEEERBHRIERITEBLIA
BEBETHNARRRD ZHEZ
EE-

WE R AL B RO ERA T
—E-—FEH
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31. RESERVES (continued) 31. BB (&)
Group (continued) KEE (&)
(b) Statutory surplus reserve (b) ZEREHEE
The Company's articles of association require the RAGIEBERMBAE
appropriation of 10% of the Company’'s profit FRARBARRAGRBE RN 2
after tax each year to the statutory surplus reserve 10%EEERREH  BEEEATE
until the balance reaches 50% of the Company’s B REEESREDARQR MR
registered capital. According to the provisions of R250%  RIBARBEBER
the Company’s articles of association, in normal MARE REFBERLT EE
circumstances, the statutory surplus reserve shall BRAFHEETARBREBR &
only be used for making up losses, capitalisation FTRA RERAR R 2 A E R
into share capital and expansion of the Company’s EoEERRBEEENM AR
production and operations. For the capitalisation of s BB IHRBEIEIRN
the statutory surplus reserve into share capital, the AR AR25% ©

remaining amount of such reserve shall not be less
than 25% of the registered capital.

Company KAF
The amounts of the Company’s reserves and the AARRKRBE-_ZE-_—F+=A
movements therein for the year ended 31 December S+—BUEFEz#EREESH S
2021 are as follows: CERUIN
Statutory
Capital surplus Other Accumulated
surplus reserve reserve losses Total
ARG LERHNEE  HeRE  RHES @t

RMBYOO0  RMBO00  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000
ABETL  ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETT

At 1 January 2020 R-E-2F—HF—H 18,561 11,853 977 (108,327) (76,936)
Loss and total comprehensive loss BB R FR2EEREAR

for the year - - - (31,861) (31,861)
At 31 December 2020 R-E-BF+-A=1-H 18,561 11,853 977 (140,188) (108,797)
At 1 January 2021 RZZ--F—-H—H 18,561 11,853 977 (140,188) (108,797)
Loss and total comprehensive loss B R FRZHEEAE

for the year - - - (39,687) (39,687)
Fair value gain arising from REEHREEZ AT ERE

shareholders' loan (note 27) (BzE27) - - 4 - 4
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—%+-A=1—8 18,561 11,853 981 (179,875) (148,480)

1 42 Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE_—T_-—F+_-_HA=+—HIFE

32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities

32. MEBERERMEE
METHELACEBZ2EH

TRINTAFERNRAEEREEHE

The following table shows the Group’s changes in

liabilities arising from financing activities during the year: ErBBEZEE:
Interest
payable
(included
in accruals Amounts Bank and
and other due to other
payables)  shareholders  borrowings Total
ERHE (GA
JERT AR
HEMAHE) EBARRRE RORELEE a8
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AREFTT  AREFTT AR
At 1 January 2020 R-Z-FF-H—H - 19,273 18,177 97,450
Financing cash inflows REBEETA - 9 7,195 7,204
Financing cash outflows BERERL - - (3,646) (3,646)
Non-cash changes #fﬁém
- Fair value gain on other borrowings ~ —H#EE 2 A FEKES - - (422) (422)
- Interest charges fﬂ,%\;%?)fﬁ - 797 9,460 10,257
- Interest waiver granted -RIzF84k - (484) (677) (1,161)
At 31 December 2020 and R-Z-25+-A=+-AK
1 January 2021 R-E--5-8-H - 19,595 90,087 109,682
Financing cash inflows AERERA - 2,240 45 2,285
Financing cash outflows MERLRE (65) - (3,930) (3,995)
Non-cash changes FREEH
- Fair value gain arising from -RRERELEZATENE
shareholders’ loans - (4) - 4)
- Interest charges -fEER 65 835 7,506 8,406
- Interest waiver granted -R¥ZREER - - - -
At 31 December 2021 RZB--F+ZA=1-H - 22,666 93,708 116,374
mﬁﬁﬁﬁktﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ

—E——
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group’'s capital commitments at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

BE—_ZT-—F+_A=+—HIFEE

33. ERAH
AR B PR R A ARSI T

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%Fx ARMTFIT
Contracted, but not provided for EHEENEICE S Y
— Capital contribution payable to —ENEERRENIELZ
an associate, Weiguang Feifan L& (ffaE19)
(note 19) 49 49

34. LITIGATIONS

During the year, the Company received certain
judgements issued by PRC courts regarding the
litigations lodged by purchase suppliers, construction
contractors and former employees of the Group which
resulted in additional legal claims payable amounted to
approximately RMB5,124,000 (2020: Nil) recognised in
the consolidated financial statements, details of which
are set out in note 25.

Up to the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the Group, as defendant, has outstanding
litigation regarding the appeal by a construction
contractor against the judgment issued by PRC court
regarding the legal claim lodged by the contractor.
Management of the Company is of the view that the
Group has merits on the litigation and considered that
this litigation would not result in additional provision
for legal claims having to be made in the consolidated
financial statements.

Apart from the above, management of the Company is
not aware of any outstanding litigations at the end of the
reporting period and up to the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements which would result in
material adverse impact on the financial position of the
Group.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2021

34. iR
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ER BEAREMAESENEER
REEFFEAT B B e E T AR BER
AR RABRBINERZRRE
RIFRIEH AR #5,124,00000 (ZF =
TFE|E) BEAFIBEYIRMFE25 -

BEZSHAMBHRRIUERT K
SEEAREN —RREABHET
BB sl A BB R OERBAERM
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R A SRR AR AR B R
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BE-_FT-——F+_A=1+—HIFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the
following transactions with related parties for the year:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Key management compensation

The compensation of key management personnel
is disclosed in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Sales of goods to related parties

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group made sales of goods at the sale prices
of approximately RMB6,853,000 (2020:
RMB3,222,000) to two related parties which are
beneficially owned by Mr. Wu Bo, the Company’s
director. At the end of the reporting period, the
sales to one of these parties to the extent of
approximately RMB1,495,000 (2020:RMB1,415,000)
remained outstanding.

Advances from holding company of a
substantial shareholder

Included in bank and other borrowings at 31
December 2021 is loans payable to an entity, which
is the holding company of a substantial shareholder
of the Company, amounting to approximately
RMB7,905,000 (2020: RMB10,542,000), which are
unsecured, repayable on demand or within one year
after the end of the reporting period, and interest
bearing at 12% per annum. In accordance with the
relevant loan agreements, repayment of the loans to
the extent of approximately RMB2,800,000 (2020:
RMB4,928,000) is guaranteed by the proceeds from
trade receivables of the Group.

36. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain Comparative figures have been reclassified to
conform with the current year’s presentation.

35. MEALRS
BRERaVBRREBEHARES
S REBFERNEANTEEEAL
R

(a)

(b)

(c)

FTEEBEABZHEM
TREEABZHMBEERGE
AR MIEE3

LEEALTHESER
REE-_T-_—F+-_A=+—
HIEFE AEBEIRHEEELY
ABR#6,853,000 (— 2 =%
F: AR#E3,222,0007T) MM A
BEAT(AARAEERK
EEERER)HEER AW
SR YW —ZZEEEALT
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

B E - —fF+ /A= —HILFE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

37. RTZA=+—BAEX2FH

THE COMPANY AS AT 31 DECEMBER B 35 AR O 3/
2021 2020
—E-—F —_EF-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt ARMFIT
(Restated)
(&%)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y W R MR G 114,163 124,270
Right-of-use assets EAEEE 9,658 9,948
Interests in associates iR N=] I e - -
123,821 134,218
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 10,455 12,656
Trade and bills receivables JEWE BRI EE 8,486 21,267
Prepayments, deposits and other TERT R 1R & B H fth fE W IE
receivables 5,092 3,984
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEEE 93 6
24,126 37,913
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Trade payables FETE 5 BRI 8,179 8,499
Accruals and other payables JE &t 5K I8 K A FE A 5RIB 110,013 99,272
Contract liabilities EHaE 5,522 5,480
Deferred government grants BIEBUTE B 2,250 2,305
Amounts due to a subsidiary FEAT— I B R B3k IE 3,745 3,085
Amounts due to shareholders FESH AR B TR IE 20,284 19,595
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 93,399 81,022
243,392 219,258
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEFHE (219,266) (181,345)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHERRBER
LIABILITIES (95,445) (47,127)

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2021




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A MBERRWE

BE-_FT-——F+_A=1+—HIFE

RTZA=1T-BZEX2FH

OF THE COMPANY AS AT 31 DECEMBER MR RE (&)
(continued)
2021 2020
—E-—fF =Sl o
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T ARBF T
(Restated)
(&%)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkRBERE
Deferred government grants BTN & B 19,767 22,017
Amounts due to shareholders JFE < % B8 2k I8 2,382 -
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE - 8,767
22,149 30,784
NET LIABILITIES EEFE (117,594) (77,911)
EQUITY R
Share capital f% 7 30,886 30,886
Reserves i (148,480) (108,797)
TOTAL DEFICIT ON EQUITY BHRERAE (117,594) (77,911)

The Company’s statement of financial position was
approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 10 June 2022 and is signed on its behalf by:

Wu Bo
RK
Director

EFE

KRR ZHBERRRRZZEZ_F X
A+BEg=Esaidt R ERSH I
HUATALTREZEE:

Jiao Baoguo
Director

EF

WA RBHKEMROBRD A
SR -FFR
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EIFEMBRE

The following is a summary of the audited results and of the
assets and liabilities of the Group for the five years ended 31
December 2021.

TERBMAEBREHEE T -_—F+ A
T+ BLRAREAFEZEEREENEE

\\\\\\

Year ended 31 December

BEEt-RA=t—-HLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
“BC-f —T-TF —T-NF T\ —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BFT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFIT
RESULTS EF
Revenue Uz 18,417 8,061 39,609 26,386 19,121
Operating (loss)/profit e (B1R)/
Pkl (32,051) (18,821) 1,056 (23,969) (25,403)
Finance costs HKER (8,406) (9,096) (9,189) (5,272) (3,173)
Loss before tax BRFE A B 18 (40,457) (27,917) (8,133) (29,241) (28,576)
Income tax expenses FTSHMX - - (1) - -
Loss for the year FREE (40,457) (27,917) (8,134) (29,241) (28,576)
Attributable to: AT REAR
Owners of the Company ~ AREIHEE A (40,390) (27,911) (8,120) (29,237) (28,535)
Non-controlling interests ~ FE¥EAE % (67) (6) (14) (4) (41)
(40,457) (27,917) (8,134) (29,241) (28,576)
At 31 December
R+=-—H=+-H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E--f —ZT-FF —ET-NF ZE-N\F —ZT—LF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES XEREE
Total assets EERE 148,505 173,752 162,034 148,317 115,068
Total liabilities BEETR (262,925)  (247,719) (208,084) (187,210) (124,720)
Non-controlling interests ~ JE¥R iS4 25 116 49 43 29 25
Total deficit attributable to  ZRRA ARG AJE(L
owners of the Company B4l A (114,304) (73,918) (46,007) (38,864) (9,627)

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.

Annual Report 2021
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